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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Bingo Group Holdings
Limited (the "Company”] collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”] for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The directors of the
Company (the “Directors”], having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016 (the “Year”) to our
shareholders.

GENERAL

During the Year, the Group continues to focus on movie
production, licensing and derivatives, crossover marketing and
provision of interactive contents (“Filmed Entertainment, New
Media Exploitations and Licensing Businesses”) and cinema
investment and management (“Cinema Business”).

In view of the on-going development of the Cinema Business,
this segment has become the prime revenue generator of the
Group in the Year. Approximately revenue of HK$73.4 million
and gross profit of HK$42.0 million were generated during the
Year. The Group maintained steady revenue and gross profit in
this sector as compared to revenue of HK$76.8 million and
gross profit of HK$44.0 million generated in last year. The
Group will continue to focus on expanding the audience
headcount and improve the financial performance of the Cinema
Business accordingly.

In the segment of Filmed Entertainment Business, the Group
has been locating suitable business opportunities and a potential
target was spotted before. In March 2014, the Group entered
into an agreement with a company, which is an associate of Mr.
Chiau Sing Chi (“Mr. Chiau”), to participate in the development of
the feasibility study for a film production. The initial capital
investment of the Group was HK$2.5 million. The Group has
completed the feasibility study in the Year. Having considered
various factors including the budget and size of the film and the
existing financial resources of the Group, the Board resolved not
to proceed with further investment in the project. A 15% return
on the initial investment amounting to approximately HK$0.6
million was recognized as the Group’s other income during the
Year.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

In the area of animation, the Group has completed an animation
film — CJ7 Super Q Team, which is derived from the intellectual
property right (“IP”) of CJ7 (&)L 75%), during the Year. The Group
was still in progress of the distribution and promaotion of this
animation, and developing CJ7 IP products at end of this fiscal
year.

In September 2015, the Group commenced to co-operate with
a PRC company to develop short movies of CJ7 (“CJ7 7D
Movies”) released in shopping malls in China providing audiences
with 7D viewing experience. The Group generated licensing
income of approximately HK$0.6 million from CJ7 7D Movies
during the Year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a total turnover of
approximately HK$74.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 2.9% as compared with HK$77.0 million for
2015. Mild decrease in the Group’s turnover was recorded
during the Year. The HK$74.8 million turnover for the Year
(2015: HK$77.0 million) mainly consisted of the gross revenue
of the Cinema Business of HK$73.4 million (2015: HK$76.8
million).

There was no material change in the Group’s turnover and
expenses, except for share-based payments, for the Year, as
compared to those recorded in last year. The decrease in the
loss for the Year to approximately HK$46.9 million from
approximately HK$63.0 million for the last year, is principally
attributable to decrease in non-cash share-based payments
from approximately HK$46.1 million for the last year to
approximately HK$21.6 million for the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$227.5 million (2015: HK$238.5 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$131.9
million (2015: HK$129.0 million). There was no pledged bank
deposit as at 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil). As at 31 March
2016, the debt ratio (defined as total liabilities/total assets)
was approximately 0.39 (2015: 0.40).

There is no material change of the Group’s total assets and
liabilities positions over the Year. The Group continued to hold
strong cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2016 and
the Board believes that the Group has sufficient resources to
satisfy its working capital requirements. During the Year, the
Group financed its operations with its own working capital. As at
31 March 2016, the Group did not have any bank overdraft
(2015: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 March 2016.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s transactions during the Year were mainly
denominated in Renminbi, HK Dollars and US Dallars. Risk on
exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates was insignificant to
the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had 166 (2015: 168) staff
in the People’s Republic of China (*PRC”) and Hong Kong. Total
staff costs including directors’ remuneration were approximately
HK$20.7 million during the Year (2015: HK$20.5 million), in
which approximately HK$3.0 million was share-based payments
to Directors (2015: HK$4.6 million).

Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and the performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. Year-end bonus based on individual performance will
be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contributions. Other benefits include contributions to statutory
mandatory provident fund scheme to its employees. During the
Year, total 29 million share options have been granted to
certain Directors (2015: 27 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2015: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of capital commitments are stated in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Details of operating lease commitments are stated in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

OUTLOOK

Owing to the booming development of the film industry in the
PRC, the Group will continue to grasp other business
opportunities in investments in cinemas in the PRC and
attractive movies, including the newly launched business of CJ7
7D Movies. While the Group continued its existing businesses,
the Group will put more focus onto locating other business
opportunities with enormous potentials, including online games
developing and operating businesses, and investments in China
cultural industry. The Board believes that the Group’s existing
businesses can create a synergistic effect with the above-
mentioned new businesses and will benefit the Group in the
future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, investors
and business partners for their continued support and
confidence in the Group. | would also like to thank my fellow
Directors and senior management team who have offered
invaluable advice and leadership during such a challenging year
and the management team and all staff for their dedication,
loyalty and valued services.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 17 June 2016
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRBERTHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chiau Sing Chi — Mr. Chiau has over 25 years of
performance and management experience in the movie industry.
Mr. Chiau has been a leading icon of the movie and
entertainment industry in the Greater China Region for over 25
years, and had received numerous awards in the industry,
including best supporting actor, best actor and best director
awards presented by leading film academies. Mr. Chiau joined
the Group in June 2010. He is currently a director of a
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Chiau is a brother of Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly — Ms. Chow was appointed as an
executive Director in January 2014. Ms. Chow has over 15
years’ ample experience in movie production and distribution as
well as licensing businesses. She is currently directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Chow is a sister of Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee — Mr. Chan joined the Group in August
2007. He is one of the responsible officers of China Everbright
Securities (HK) Limited. Mr. Chan is currently a licensed person
to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in
futures contracts), type 3 (leveraged foreign exchange trading)
and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
SFO. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the
College of Business Administration of the University of South
Florida in the United States of America. Mr. Chan is experienced
in dealing in securities, fund management, corporate
management, corporate finance and managing listed investment
companies under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules of Hong Kong
Stock Exchanges.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRBERTHE

Since June 2003, Mr. Chan joined China Innovation Investment
Limited (stock code: 1217), an investment company listed on
the Stock Exchange, as executive director. Mr. Chan was
appointed as an executive director of China Investment and
Finance Group Limited (stock code: 1226), an investment
company listed on the Stock Exchange, in March 2011. Mr.
Chan was appointed as an executive director of China
Investment Development Limited (stock code: 204), an
investment company listed on the Stock Exchange, in May
2012. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of
Capital VC Limited (stock code: 2324), an investment company
listed on the Stock Exchange, in November 2012. Mr. Chan
was appointed as an executive director of Alpha Returns Group
PLC, an investment company listed on AIM of London Stock
Exchange, in May 2013. Mr. Chan was appointed as an
executive director of China New Economy Fund Limited (stock
code: 80), an investment company listed on the Stock Exchange,
in June 2013. Mr. Chan was also appointed as an executive
director of China Trends Holdings Limited (stock code: 8171),
which is listed on Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange, in February 2016. Mr. Chan is currently directors of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mpr. Lau Man Kit — Mr. Lau joined the Group in January 2014.
Mr. Lau has over 35 years of extensive sales and marketing
experience in various industries, including property
management, computer technology systems and automobiles,
and has a wide business network in China. Mr. Lau is currently
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang, Roberta — Mrs. Chin has co-
produced various films with the Golden Harvest Group in the
past. Mrs. Chin holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in English
Literature from Dominican University of California, USA and a
Master’s Degree in Communication — Documentary film from
Stanford University, USA. Mrs. Chin has more than 25 years’
experience in the film production and distribution industry,
including as an interim CEQ in the JC Group. Mrs. Chin joined
the Group in May 2010. Mrs. Chin is currently directors of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRBERTHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chak Keung — Mr. Wong holds a bachelor degree
in business from The University of Southern Queensland in
Australia. Mr. Wong is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia
respectively. Mr. Wong has been in the accounting profession
for over 15 years. In addition to his working experience in an
international accounting firm in Hong Kong, Mr. Wong had also
worked for listed and other companies engaged in investment,
accounting, educational business, manufacturing, and mergers
and acquisitions. Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-
executive director of Dache Global Group Limited (stock code:
915) which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Wong joined the Group in August 2010.

Ms. Choi Mei Ping — Ms. Choi has approximately 20 years’
ample marketing experience in the airline industry. She is
currently working in an international airline company. She has
joined the Group in November 2014.

Mpr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk — Mr. Tsoi has approximately 4 years’ ample
experience in capital markets industry. He is currently working
as the Chief Executive Officer of lIce River Investments
International Company Limited. He has joined the Group in
December 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EREIRE

OVERVIEW

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report for the year ended 31 March 2016
(the “Year”). The Company is concerned to have high standards
of corporate governance. It is important because the Board
believes that good quality corporate governance would assist the
management to monitor the Company’s business activities
effectively and thus interests of the shareholders of the
Company will be well protected.

The Company has applied the principles in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report contained
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules (the “Code”). The
Company is in compliance with the mandatory Code provisions,
save for the deviations discussed below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Year. The
Company has also made specific enquiry to all Directors and,
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
required standard of dealing and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
Board of Directors

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company’s business and affairs. The ultimate
responsibility for the day to day management, administration
and operation of the Company is delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company. In
practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making in
all major matters of the Company. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the Group and the Board has the full support of them to
discharge its responsibilities.
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Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 11 to 13 of this annual report. Given the
composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge and expertise
of the Directors, the Board believes that it is appropriately
structured to provide sufficient checks and balances to protect
the interests of the Group and the shareholders. The Board will
review its compaosition regularly to ensure that it has the
appropriate balance of expertise, skills and experience to
continue to effectively oversee the business of the Company.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee with the reference to their respective duties and
responsibility with the Company, the Company’s performance
and current market situation. Details of emoluments of the
Directors for the Year are disclosed in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eight
Directors, including four executive Directors, namely Mr. Chiau
Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, Mr. Chan Cheong Yee and
Mr. Lau Man Kit; one non-executive Director, namely Mrs. Chin
Chow Chung Hang Roberta; and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chak Keung, Ms. Choi
Mei Ping and Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk. Mr. Chiau Sing Chi and Ms.
Chow Man Ki Kelly are siblings. Save as disclosed, the Board
members have no financial, business, family or other material /
relevant relationship(s) with each other.

Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed in writing
their independence from the Company in accordance with the
guidelines on director independence of the GEM Listing Rules.
On this basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the
same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend
external forum or training courses on relevant topics which may
count towards Continuous Professional Development training.
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Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5, Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During
the Year, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities either by
attending training courses or by reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and
General Meetings attended by each Director during the Year
under review is set out in the following table. Figure in brackets
indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in which
the individual was a Board Member or Committee Member (as
the case may be).

RIFTRMRXEABLIG  EFE2EGESR
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Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Notes Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
Esps i3 Ezgel ENZESS8E ¥FMZEe82 REEZE8Y RREFEAE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi [BAEEE 2/(17) N/ATE N/ATER N/ATER 0/
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly A+ 14/(17) N/ATER 3/(4) 1/01) o/
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee REERE 16/(17) N/ATER N/ATEA N/ATEF 1/(1)
Mr. Chong Lee Chang REAREE 1 7/(10) N/ATER N/ATEA 0/(1) o/(M
Mr. Lau Man Kit B fEsE 10/(17) N/ATER N/ATEA N/ATEH 0/(1)
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang, Roberta &4+ 16/(17) N/ATER N/ATEA N/ATER /1)
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Wong Chak Keung HERLE 16/(17) 5/(5) 4/4) 2/(2) 0/(1)
Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmond BEMEE 1 3/(10) 1/(@) 1/(3) 1/(1) 0/01)
Ms. Choi Mei Ping BEFRL 16/(17) 5/(5) 4/(4) 2/(2) 0/
Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk BEHBEE 2 3/(3) 2/(2) N/ATEA N/ATER N/ATER
Note 1: retired on 14 September 2015. HiaE1: RZT—RFNATHMARME
Note 2: appointed on 11 December 2015. Hitra2: RZZE-—HRFT-A+—REZZI-
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the Provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be clearly established and set out in writing. The
Board is in the process of locating an appropriate person to fill
the vacancy of the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company as soon as practicable.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

The non-executive Director and all independent non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but they are
subject to re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with the Articles of the Association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years.
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CHAIRMAN OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Provision A.5.1 of the Code, the nomination
committee should be chaired by the chairman of the board or
an independent non-executive director. The Chairman of the
Company’s Nomination Committee is Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly,
who is an executive Director but not the Chairman of the Board.

As mentioned in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” above, the Board is in the process of locating
appropriate persons to fill the vacancies of the chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company as soon as practicable.

ATTENDANCE IN GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to Provision A.6.7 of the Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings. The independent non-executive
Directors could not attend the annual general meeting held in
the year ended 31 March 2016 due to other business
commitments.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference
adopted by the Board, which include (a) to develop and review
the Company's policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e)
to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Board had reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of its corporate governance policy.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the independent auditor’s report
attached to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2016 set out in this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Ka Yin was appointed as the company secretary on 1
November 2013. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He reports to the executive
Directors of the Company and assists the Board in functioning
effectively and efficiently. During the Year, Mr. Chan undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update his skill and
knowledge.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference. During the Year, the Remuneration Committee
comprises all independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Chak Keung (Chairman), Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmond
(resigned on 14 September 2015), Ms. Choi Mei Ping and Mr.
Tsoi Chiu Yuk (appointed on 11 December 2015), and one
executive Director, Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly.
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The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include (a)
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (b) to
review and approve the management’'s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;
and (c) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of executive Directors, non-executive Directors,
and senior management, and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate.

The primary goal of the remuneration on executive remuneration
packages is to enable the Group to mativate executive Directors
and senior management by linking their remuneration with
reference to the Group’s operation results, which reference to
individual performances and comparable market statistics.

The principal elements of the Group’s executive remuneration
package include basic salary, discretionary bonus, and share
options.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprises Ms.
Chow Man Ki Kelly (Chairman, appointed on 14 September
2015), Mr. Chong Lee Chang (Chairman, resigned on 14
September 2015), both being executive Directors, and all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chak
Keung, Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmond (resigned on 14
September 2015), Ms. Choi Mei Ping and Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk
(appointed on 11 December 2015).
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The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on selection of individual nominated for directorships;
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors; and determining the policy for nomination of
Directors. The Nomination Committee has specific written
terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those stipulated in Code provisions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
annual report and accounts, interim report and quarterly
reports and to provide advices and comments thereon to the
Board. The Audit Committee will also be responsible for
reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting and
internal control system.

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprises all independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chak Keung
(Chairman), Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmond (resigned on 14
September 2015), Ms. Choi Mei Ping and Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk
(appointed on 11 December 2015). In the meetings held during
the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual, interim and
quarterly results of the Company and made recommendations
to the Board and the management in respect of the Company’s
financial reporting and internal control system.

REZEBGZREBRBINESTEZRE - A
BLEER  MEABAEERAETIESS
REZAL UHERREZRABALHEESER
PUtMEESRMHER AEEZELEREN
REFETFHIZEREENESSREZ
& MAIERBESTZIHR - RBEREENUE
EAABERE - HERNERERE NER T
AR PRT A -

FERRAE

ARBEKIEZZES ([BEREZRE)) X
BRAIZR EHARRIE5.281% =5 5.33 1k
NEmMBTEBERE FELZEQ@ 7T 2R
ARBHAARRZERLER - PHHRERF
E#E  UsitmESTSRHERES -

“ZEZEENARBRRS REEARBZWHE

HEAEFREIE R -

RAFE BERZESHE2RBUNFNTES
AR AEERELE(XFE) BEMELE(R
“E-RFNARTOBEME)  BEEXETFRLEIR
EPBREE(R_T-—RF+-_A+—BHEZ
) BERZEENAFERARITZIERLE
BARBZEE  PHRFERE  UpAQ
AZUBEREABEERARAESS RER
ERHERSR -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ke EEZERERAR

|



22

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELWE

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 March 2016, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor on financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report attached to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2016.

The Board has regularly reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system with an aim to safeguard the
shareholders’ interests and the Company’'s assets. The purpose
is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in achieving the Company’s
business objectives.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2016, fees for the Company’s
external auditor for audit services and non-audit services were
HK$700,000 and HK$160,000 respectively.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 38 to 39.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposal at general
meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary
general meetings. Any one or more shareholders of the
Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the articles of association of the
Company, no person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a written notice (unless otherwise specifically
stated and as further defined in the articles of association of the
Company]) (the “Natice”) signed by a shareholder of the Company
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend
and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a Notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected shall have been lodged at the head office of the Company
or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company
provided that the minimum length of the period, during which
such Notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and
that (if the Notices are submitted after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the
period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date of such general meeting.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Company, for the attention of the Board of Directors, by
email: info@bingogroup.com.hk, or mail to Room 102-4, 1/F
Sea Bird House, 22-28 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a
high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations.
The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and
investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including quarterly, interim and annual reports and
public announcements. While the annual general meeting
provides a valuable forum for direct communication between the
Board and its shareholders, the Company also maintains its
website to provide an alternative communication channel for the
public and its shareholders. All corporate communication and
Company’s latest updates are available on the Company’s
website for public’'s information.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Bingo Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2016 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 371
March 2016 by operating segment is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 40 to
43. The Directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016
(2015: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 136. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of movements in either the Company’s convertible bonds,
share capital and share options during the Year are set out in
notes 24, 25 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2016.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
assaciation of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During in the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 2.5% of the total sales for the year and sales to
the largest customer included therein amounted to 2.3%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted to
91.9% of the total cost of sales for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 81.7%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers during the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chiau Sing Chi

Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee

Mr. Lau Man Kit

Mr. Chong Lee Chang (retired on 14 September 2015)

Non-executive Director:
Mprs. Chin Chow Chung Hang Roberta

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chak Keung

Ms. Choi Mei Ping

Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk (appointed on 11 December 2015)

Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmond (retired on 14 September 2015)

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk
shall retire in accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’'s
articles of association, while Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, Mr. Lau
Man Kit and Mr. Wong Chak Keung shall retire by rotation in
accordance with Article 84(1). All of them being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election thereat.

The service contract entered into between Mr. Chiau Sing Chi
("Mr. Chiau”) and the Company dated 22 February 2010, has
expired on 31 May 2015. During the Year, the Company has
entered into another agreement with Mr. Chiau, pursuant to
which with effect from 1 June 2015, Mr. Chiau is entitled to a
remuneration of HK$1 per month plus discretionary bonus.
There is no fixed term for this agreement, but the appointment
is subject to rotation requirements in the articles of association
of the Company.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the year ended 31 March 2016 and it still considered them
to be independent as the date of this report.

EF

REEARBEAREBMZARREER

BITES
ARG EE
EX i+
REZSLE
Eg S
REREE(R-ZE—HFNATEOERE)

FHTES:
PR EHT 22+

BAFITES:

BEWLE

BX¥t

gHEEE(R-_FT—RF+_A+—H
BZE)

BEWEE(R-_F-RAFAATEHRERE)

RERERFRBEFAE - ERBLEAREAR
NAEZAHERMAEBIB)HEME - MAEAX
Rt BIXBEEERERZREEBRESR
B4 IRmESER - HEANEERLBEER
REeLBRXER-

FEEE((ALE]D BARTBMILEHR
—E-THFE AT ZHZREEHNER=ZT
—HAFRAA=1+—RHEM - RAFE » ARF
HEAEERI L S — e - Bt BREA%
WELAF 1 BTTIBIEREAL BT —RF X
A—HELER - ZpHLEEEFH - EEH
ERAR AR RABERARIPIE R ERER
FEFTARIR ©

RAFERCKER BN TEENEE
TE-RFZA=THIFERBEEEBAR
SBERAFRIZERES EmRR ([RIZR E
MHAI) E£5.08RIFH 2 FEBILERE -
HEAGRSBEH  ARADRREEFBEILA
+ o

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ke EEZERERAR

7 !



2 |

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the Year, none of the Directors has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, any of the subsidiaries
or its holding company was a party and in which any Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at the time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, the following Directors of the Company
had or were deemed to have interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to herein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors to be natified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

(a) Long positions in the shares of the Company

EFRERTHRARRKGRHEM
BRifZESZRKRE

RZZE—R"FZA=1t—H " MIARAEF
RARABREEBZEZE(EEREBENF
7M1 EFZHRBE G EHRBE G D)
FEXVER) 2 Befn - HERMKEST  HEX
WARVETE A ()RR E 7 M IR 1R PI 6 XV B 5
7 %870 BAME AN R F) R AP 2 s BOR
B (BREFRIEES KRB ERE B RO
EFSREHRB 2 ERIORR) + K(INRIFE
7 M HIE 150 5 302 IR A RS AR IRFT L & &
Mz mgoR A s(ii) RIFAIZER 43 A
FH5A4BE5 67 HREMESFTETESFRHZ
REAMGANRE N2 ETAR

(a) RELXFRGBZHA

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

capital of
the Company
Number of PN
Name of Directors Nature of interest Shares held ERITRAE
Y EatE RO E BRBE
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee Beneficial owner 5,000 0.00%
REELE EnEBA
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi (Note 1) Beneficial owner 110,294,117 3.22%
[BR B (Hat 1) EmEAA
Held by trust 1,608,484,963 47.01%
B{EEHA
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly (Note 1) Held by trust 1,608,484,963 47 .01%
B3R 24 (Bat 1) BEFEHA

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes:

1. These shares are registered in the name of Beglobal Investments
Limited and Golden Treasure Investments Limited. Beglobal
Investments Limited and Golden Treasure Investments Limited are
companies indirectly owned by the trust, the discretionary objects of
which are Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly and their
family.

2. The total number of the issued share capital of the Company as at
31 March 2016 was 3,421,538,679.

(b) Long positions in the underlying shares of the
Company

The Company adopted a share options scheme on 15
August 2012 which the Board may, at their discretion,
offer employees, Directors, or any other persons who have
contributed to the Group to take up share options to
subscribe for shares subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated in the share option scheme.
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Details of the share options granted to the Directors under RARFERE » ZE 8 RMEAH st 878
the Schemes and any other schemes and movements in TRYESFZERENESFSHFBOT

such holdings during the Year were as follows:

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
options held options options options  options held
as at granted exercised cancelled/ as at
1 April during during  lapsed during 31 March
Name of Directors Option type 2015 the Year the Year the Year 2016
R=Z-1% RAEE RAEE REEE  RIB-RE
BhRE MA— A& Bitiz 12 H4/%% =A=t-A8
BEfE E<pi BREZE BREHE BREZE <BREZE FEBREHE
(Note 1) (000) ('000) (000) (000) (000)
(Bz#1) (F17) (F1p) (F17) (F17) (F1n)
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi 2012A 3,000 - - - 3,000
REREE 20138 125,000 - - - 125,000
2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
2015A - 8,000 - - 8,000
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly 2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
R+ 2015A - 3,000 - - 3,000
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee 2012A 15,000 - - - 15,000
REZEIE 2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
2015A - 3,000 - - 3,000
Mr. Chong Lee Chang (Note 2] 2012A 3,000 - (3,000) - -
REREE (ML) 2013A 2,000 - (2,000) - -
2014A 3,000 - - (3,000) -
Mr. Lau Man Kit 2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
Bt 2015A - 3,000 - - 3,000
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang 2012A 3,000 - - - 3,000
Roberta 2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
BEEH L 2015A - 3,000 - - 3,000
Mr. Chum Kwan Yue Desmond 2012A 3,000 - (3,000) - -
(Note 2] 2014A 3,000 - - (3,000) -
SEmEE (M2 2015A - 3,000 - (3,000) -
Mr. Wong Chak Keung 2012A 3,000 - - - 3,000
BERLE 2014A 3,000 - - - 3,000
2015A - 3,000 - - 3,000
Ms. Choi Mei Ping 2015A - 3,000 - - 3,000
EXTRT
Total £zt 181,000 29,000 (8,000) (9,000) 193,000
Note 1: Details of specific categories of share options are disclosed in WiF1: AEBFTEEANEREZFBREGEVHE
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. HWERMFIIWE -
Note 2: Retired on 14 September 2015. e : R-ZZE—RAFALATMART-

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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In addition to 139,000,000 number of Shares which
would be allotted and issued upon the exercise in full of the
options offered to Mr. Chiau Sing Chi under the share
option scheme of the Company above, 220,588,235
number of Shares which would be allotted and issued upon
the exercise in full of the convertible bonds held by Mr.
Chiau Sing Chi.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), (i) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQJ; or (ii)
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFQO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2016, the
following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had, or was deemed to have, interests or short in the
shares or underlying shares (i) which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii) who is expected,
directly and indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group
or (iii) which were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein:

Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

FERREEMA LG REH
B finz i

REZERA R-T—R"F=ZA=1+—H8 I
TAT(AEFARRESHRZRHITHRAR) R
0 S AERA R 10 A A SRR ER A () IR IBRE 55
KNEEIRAIEXVELSE 2 K35 &8 2 kX /AR
ARR B PTRE 2 S SORR ¢ (i) B
HERIERHERETARRNEA(ETERE
AEFMPERBER TEREBERKE AT Z
REAE FRE)EE10%RIA iR 2
SOk A ¢ (i) RIEEF & HE 15 % 336 1k
ARSI ZIGRPTL B M 2 gk R

RAEXTRG RAEBERG 2FR

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

capital of

Number of the Company

Name of Shareholders Shares held HARAR BT
IR E B FrisRm &R BRABNE DL
Sinostar FE (PTC) Limited (Note 1)(f::1) 1,608,484,963 47.01%
Treasure Offshore Holdings Limited (Note 1)(Kfa 1) 1,608,484,963 47.01%
Beglobal Investments Limited (Note 2)(#/zF 2) 1,608,484,963 47.01%
Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited (Note 2)(f1::2) 290,000,000 8.48%

Note:

1. Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki, Kelly and their family are the
beneficiaries of a discretionary trust of which Sinostar FE (PTC) Limited
(“Sinostar”) is the trustee. Sinostar as the trustee of the discretionary trust
is the sole shareholder of Treasure Offshore Holdings Limited, which is the
sole shareholder of Beglobal Investments Limited.

2. Beglobal Investments Limited directly holds 1,318,484,963 shares of the
Company (representing approximately 38.53% of the issued share capital
of the Company) and indirectly holds 290,000,000 shares of the Company
(representing approximately 8.48% of the issued share capital of the
Company) through Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited as at 31
March 20186.

it -

1. AREE  AXELXTRERBR—AREET
2%z A * Sinostar FE (PTC) Limited ([ Sinostar])
RZEEETLZIZFTA - ERZERERZZTEA
Sinostar %A Treasure Offshore Holdings Limited 2
M — f% ® - M &% 2 A ABeglobal Investments
Limited 2 M — %R

2. MZZ—"F=A=+—H ' Beglobal Investments
Limited 5 fZ45%51,318,484,963 % A2 &i& 5 (15
RNA A 31T A #38.53%) © I % 18 Golden
Treasure Global Investment Limited & # # &
290,000,000 & A2 &I 15 (1A AR R B 2 BT AR
4)8.48%) °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to
written resolutions passed on 139 October 2002 (the “Scheme
A”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors,
eligible employees and participants who have contributed to the
Group, and has expired on 12 November 2012. Pursuant to
resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a new share option
scheme (the “Scheme B”) was adopted under the same
conditions of the original scheme and will expire on 14 August
2022. Under Schemes A and B (collectively, the “Schemes”),
the board of directors of the Company may grant options to
certain employees of the Group and any distributor, contractor,
business partner, promoter, service provider, customer,
supplier, consultants, agents and advisers or any person who,
in the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group in recognition of their contribution to
the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
of the Company available for issue under the Scheme B is
342,153,867 shares, which represents approximately 10.0%
of the number of total issued shares of the Company.

As at 31 March 2016, the remaining life of the Scheme B was
approximately 6 years and 5 months.
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Details of the share options granted under the Schemes and

any other schemes and movements in such holdings during the

Year were as follow:

RAFE  ZE5H 8 R A A SE TR H

Number of
options Number of
Number of Number of Number of cancelled/ options
options options options lapsed held as at
held as at granted exercised during 31 March
1 April 2015 during during the Year 2016
R-ZT—HF the Year the Year RANFEEFH R-ZZT—XRE
Category Option type MAE—H REFEREZ REFETEZ KMz =A=+—-H
Ezl R AEE R FrsBRERE BREHE BREHE BREHE FMEBREXE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
) T T T T
Directors & % 2012A 30,000 - (6,000) - 24,000
2013A 2,000 - (2,000) - -
2013B 125,000 - - - 125,000
2014A 24,000 - - (6,000) 18,000
2015A - 29,000 - (3,000) 26,000
Employees & & 2012A 10,000 - - - 10,000
Advisors & 2011B 9,000 - - - 9,000
2012A 90,300 - (90,300) - -
2014A 277,140 - - - 277,140
2015A - 132,000 - - 132,000
20158 - 50,000 - - 50,000
Total 425t 567,440 211,000 (98,300) (9.000) 671,140

Note: Details of specific categories of share options are disclosed in note 33 to

the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES’' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES” and “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” above, none of the Directors or employees of the

Group or their associates were granted by the Company or its

subsidiaries the rights to acquire shares or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate, or had exercised any

such rights as at 31 March 2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other connected transactions (including
continuing connected transactions) were entered into by the
Group under the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders or the
substantial shareholders of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interest with the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period of the Group are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITORS

Graham H.Y Chan & Co., who acted as auditor of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2013, resigned on 4 April 2014,
Cheng & Cheng Limited was subsequently appointed as auditor
of the Company on 16 April 2014. The consolidated financial
statements for the years ended 31 March 2014, 2015 and
2016 have been audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited.

Cheng & Cheng Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 17 June 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB Eh R

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

WO g w oMOF OB R F R A
10/F., Allied Kajima Building,

138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability]

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to
135, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body and for no other purpose. \We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

ANNUAL REPORT F#
2015/168

Fs T LT 13858
BEEERE 10

B SEEZERAERATDZZBRE
(REEHBIMA L HERA])

Az BED (AT R [ EFRZIERNE
A0EEF130EZREEZERERAR(E
RE) REMBAR (R TERE]) 2&E
MBmE - BPRER-_E—RF=ZA=1—
BZHEEMBIHRREER  BEZXB LFEZER
AEER FARHEMEZANRER GaRAEE
PREGERERER  UARTESHBERM
ZNEMBEEER

EFRGaMERRARIBEZRE

BERRIZERBRERBEFT L ST ASE M
ZEBUBRERER RIRRER QARSI 2 B
BRERBGAVTHRE  REFEHEERA
FZRB - AREEEERAmBEAMBR
RFTWEZ BN ERIER] - DAEER S M WwEK
THEEHNRFRERMEBZERHERR

it o

ez R

BANETRRERMINERZEZFFREVH
BRIELER  RIEABBRRBRSE - Ktz
ShRIEEMBE > MEMATERARE 2AR

AEAEMALTE ESEEEEEE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB Eh R

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2016 and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Cheng & Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Shek Chi

Practising Certificate number PO5540

Hong Kong, 17 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
sERaR
et

2016 2015
—F-Xx"F —FTIF
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000

et FHET FET
Turnover EER 6 74,774 76,961
Cost of sales FSHERKA (31,460) (32,818)
Gross profit EF 43,314 44,143
Other revenue and other net income H b Y8 K E bR U A 7 2,819 4,322
Selling expenses HEMY (2,321) (1,850)
Administrative expenses 1THRAX (55,775) (49,177)
Share-based payments LARR (D B ETE 2 5% 33 (21,600) (46,0786)
Impairment losses REEE g (8,653) (8,581)
Finance costs & KA 8 (2,529) (2,908)
Loss before taxation BrEf AT E 1B g (44,745) (60,137)
Taxation TRiB 12 (2,143) (2,839)
Loss for the year REEERE (46,888) (62,976)
Loss attributable to: FE(L SIS -
Owners of the Company RARER A (49,346) (65,947)
Non-controlling interests FEIERRRERS 2,458 2,971
(46,888) (62,976)
HK cents HK cents
B el
Loss per share BREE 14
Basic HA (1.46) (2.06)
Diluted e N/ARER N/ATES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AaRtZEkRR

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2016 2015
—F-Xx"F —FTIF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET
Loss for the year KEEEE (46,888) (62,9786)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income  HE#12 @ (F518) ks
Item that may be reclassified R EF o EEBm o HE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating MEEINEREECER X5
foreign operations
— Exchange differences arising — RNFEEEZERERE
during the year (1,472) 61
Other comprehensive (loss)/income REFHEMETE (EBE) Iz
for the year, net of tax MKRHiE (1,472) 61
Total comprehensive loss AEEXHEBGEARHE
for the year (48,360) (62,915)
Total comprehensive loss EEEEERARE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AKREEB A (50,837) (65,896)
Non-controlling interests SRR 2,477 2,981

(48,360) (62,918)

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ke EEZERERAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A RSB =

2016 2015
—F-Xx"F —FTIF
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000

Kt st FET FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE NMRE 15 27,120 37,856
Goodwill S 16 950 950
28,070 38,806
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade receivables FEUBR X 17 1,834 3,831
Other receivables, deposits and HEMERERIE - RS RIEFRIE
prepayments 18 18,703 17,370
Payments to parties for procurement — FERE Pt E KRS 22 FOB
for investment of cinema business 19 47,010 47,010
Films in progress and film rights TREZ REBELNIE 20 - 2,473
Tax recoverable BIREE - 4
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBEEEY 21 131,913 128,974
199,460 199,662
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables FEITBRK 22 1,896 2,141
Deposits received, other payables and B YWigs « HiERZIER
accruals FEEHFRIB 23 70,063 71,700
Tax payables S FEIAR 2,034 2,101
73,993 75,942
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 125,467 123,720
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELERRBARS
LIABILITIES 153,537 162,526
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A RSB =

2016 2015
—F-Xx"F —FTIF
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000

Mt FET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBER
Convertible bonds AR E S 24 14,889 19,331
NET ASSETS EEZFE 138,648 143,195
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B &
Share capital A& A 25 136,861 128,518
Reserves wEE (9,986) 5,237
126,875 133,755
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE 2 11,773 9,440
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 138,648 143,195

The consolidated financial statements on pages 40 to 135 were HENREAO0BEE 135 B 2 A MBHRED
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on R_E—RFERAATHREESGIERKE

)il
17 June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: T WA TIEEREREE
Chan Cheong Yee Lau Man Kit
RE= B3 £
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE EFE

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED w
ke EEZERERAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeEaERR

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

Equity Attributable
component Share to owners Non-
Share Share  Contributed ~of convertible options  Exchange ~ Accumulated ofthe  controlling
capital premium surplus bonds reserve reserve losses Company interests Total
TRRES ERREEA
i RitEE BhEh Ea¥s  BRERE EXGE ZiTER Bl FERER Eh
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKBOO0  HK$OO0  HKSO00  HK000  HKS000  HKSOOO  HK$OOO
T T Tin Tér T T T T Tiér TER
At 31 March 2014 RZF-WE=A=1-H 123,288 335,607 3,930 114,249 28,686 (662)  (471,879) 133,223 5,102 138,325
(Loss)/proft: for the year REE(BE) /47 - - - - - - (65,947) (65,947) 2,971 (62,976)
Other comprehensive income for the year A5 212 E N - - - - - 51 - 51 10 81
Tatal comprehensive income/(loss) REERANG/(BR)4E
for the year - - - - - 51 (65,947) (65,896) 2,981 (62,915)
Issue of convertible bonds BURRES - - - 532 - - - 532 - 532
Issue of new shares under REERETHZTIRG
share option scheme 5,230 25,332 - - (10,166) - - 20,396 - 20,396
Equity settled share option arrangement #5452 7 BRERH - - - - 45,500 - - 45,500 - 45,500
Lapse of share options BRELH - - - - (448) - 448 - - -
Contribution from non-controling interests 3£/ ER 1+ 2 - - - - - - - - 1,357 1,357
At 31 March 2015 RZF-RE=A=1-H 128518 360,939 3930 114781 83,572 (811)  (637,374) 133795 9440 143195
(Loss)/proft; for the year REE(FR)/ %7 - - - - - - (49,346) (49,346) 2,458 (46,888)
Other comprehensive (loss}/income TEEEMRE(BE)/ K
for the year - - - - - (1,491) - (1,491) 19 (1,472)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income TERRT(BR)/WEaE
for the year - - - - - (1,491)  (49,346)  (50,837) 2,477 (48,360)
Issue of new shares upon conversion of AT ATREFE H ABE RN
convertible bonds 4,411 40,821 - (38,261) - - - 6,971 - 6,971
Issue of new shares under RiEBRE R TTRE
share option scheme 3,932 19,050 - - (7,596) - - 15,386 - 15,386
Equity settled share option arrangement  J\E% 455 7 BRiEZ - - - - 21,600 - - 21,600 B 21,600
Lapse of share options BRELT - - - - (1,211) - 1,211 - - -
Dividend payment to non-controlling miRREREARS
interests - - - - - - - - (144) (144)
At 31 March 2016 RZF-7§=A=1-H 136,861 420,810 3,930 76,520 76,365 (2,102)  (585,509) 126,875 11,773 138,648
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A, s =
FETERER
For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—XRE —ET-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEECHRERE

ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year REEREE (46,888) (62,976)
Adjustments for: KRB ATEIE

Income tax expenses Frisfiz 2,143 2,839

Finance costs recognised in profit RERERZBE AR

or loss 2,529 2,908

Interest income FEMA (228) (203)

Depreciation e 9,287 9,609

Impairment loss on trade receivables FEW R 2 BB R 15 649 7,489

Impairment loss on films in progress EEEY MEZRE

and film rights 2 M{EER 8,004 1,102

Fixed assets written off WEHEE B E 34 634

Share-based payments VAR BERE 2 A5k 21,600 46,076
Operating cash flows before working EEESEHP KL

capital changes Rens (2,870) 7,476
Decrease in trade receivables JRE LS BR SR 1,348 115
(Increase)/Decrease in other HEERFOE - me &

receivables, deposits and prepayments  FE{ 3018 (3840), 5 (1,333) 1,817
(Increase)/Decrease in films in progress 72L& 5 N & 52 i

and film rights (3 ),/ (5,531) 1,671
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables  FERTBR 3% (Ri2),/HEhn (245) 411
Decrease in depaosits received, Bl e - Efth ERTIE KR

other payables and accruals e RIE R A (1,637) (8,152)
CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED EE(FTA) FiER&

FROM OPERATION (10,268) 3,338
Tax paid B FE (2,208) (2,962)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED wesEE (FrA), /s

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZBREFREE (12,474) 376

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ke EEZERERAR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FEHReNRER
e e 21 i 20t

2016 2015
—F-Xx"F —FIF
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000

Kt st FET FHT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETEH2HERE

ACTIVITIES
Repayment from parties for procurement Fti% & BT %5 RS 7

for investment of cinema business We[el 2 k18 - 2,194
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BEREE

equipment (194) (1,571)
Interests received B E 228 205
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETEFTEZ

INVESTING ACTIVITIES HE R 34 828
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETE2HERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from shares issued under BIEEIRETEIEITRD 2

share option scheme Fri5 5008 15,386 20,396
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT 2 AR

interests (144) -
Contribution from non-controlling FEIE R T

interests - 1,357
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RMEEEME2E S EE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 15,242 21,753
INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBESESEYEMN

CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,802 22,957
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHNzEERESEEY

THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 128,974 106,000
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  SMEE R & &) 2 £ 137 17
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZBEREASEEY

THE END OF THE YEAR 21 131,913 128,974
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the head office and
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is
located at Room 102-104, 1st Floor, Sea Bird House,
22-28 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong. The
Company has its primary listing on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
consider the Company’s ultimate holding company to be
Beglobal Investments Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of The Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below. These consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under historical cost
convention except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value, as explained in the
accounting policies set out in annual report.

LFEH

RRARZEBRBR/REER - AR
EMB AR EBXBENEE PR
RHIFES4 ©
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Square, Hutchins Drive, P.0O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands © M4~A 52 423 F 55
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Bt 4 22-285% U E KX E 11 102-104
E o ARAREBEABMEZHMERRAA
BIZR(TRIZERDBERE — s -
ARRER((EF)RR AREIZ&K
BRERABIAREBEXES MK
2 B[R & {I A 7] Beglobal Investments
Limited °
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a) EpfIEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a) Statement of compliance (Continued)
The Group has applied the following amendments to

HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 201 1-2013 Cycle
Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans:
HKAS 19 Employee Contributions

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior year and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016

B2 T NF=H=1+—HIIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND 2. REBELIERHITREEE
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BUEREEANZRE (E)
STANDARDS (Continued)
a) Statement of compliance (Continued) a) HHIBHE)

AEEYBIEFEA TIIEEME
AR E R ZHE] RIERT &R 5

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective: HELER
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BEURALENZIE SBIAC
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferred Accounts’ BREURALENZ14Y EEEEEE
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EAUBHEENZ 158 RERPAINE®
Customers®
HKFRS 16 Leases® FEURALENZ 16 HES
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative’ BRSHENZ 1R 26T REHE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable EECIENEI6KR  BENERERITESR
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and EAGHENZBE  HAE
Amortisation’ pd 5|
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants’ ERSENS16R  BEELEEN
and HKAS 41 BREHENZEM R
bl 5|
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate BRGHENE27E  BUMBHRzESE
Financial Statements’ pd 5|
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to EARNBRERR B —E-—FEE-IF
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle' ey £t
LEEE
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Ehn RS WEAEEmELRY
Interests in Joint Operations’ F1R2ET Ry
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets EANBHERAZ 0% REFRARELRAY
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its REES R RENETEELE
Associate or Joint Venture® FBR LT FHEA
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying the BRI BRLE] REZE: ERFAKS
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception’ 0% DEUBRE 2R
BRI REAEH

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

ERIE2BR BT

! RZF-RF-HA—-Bgz®&MKz

2016 FE R AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 R-ZE—N\EFE—HA—Hskz%MAZ
2018 FE R AR

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 R-E—NE—A—Hskz%MAZ
2019 FE R AR

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 4 WEFEHES 2 BAKR FERME
determined m

The Group is in the process of making an assessment REBE I FETFHZFETT N VIR IE

of what the impact of these amendments is expected FRHEI 2 FEHAS 2 o NEBE B BTN

to be in the period of initial application. So far the RELHBAZE BT @R AER 2
Group is not yet in a position to state whether they E4 &/jﬁjﬁﬂj{ﬁ%}ﬂzij{,

would have a significant impact on the Group’s results £

and/or financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
B2 —F—NFZH=+—HIFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b) Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. \Where
certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed
of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

c)

ANNUAL
2015/168

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their fair value, except that:

i) deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities
or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

i) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or
the replacement of an acquiree’s share-based
payment transactions with share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date; and

i)  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.

REPORT %

2. WEEBELEMITREETE
RMERSENZREE(E)

c)

EBEH

EBWETIRARBEAR - RE
BaptER s RKERIERE
B ASEMEREE  ~ASEY
WEHRRERAAEZABRA
SEARBMBH R 2 I HIRET
Z RS A B2 AP EEME
HEE - BB HRE KA KR
EERERSETHER -

RUEE B H - PRURE AT BRI & E K
PR aERE QT ERR  HET
51|38 B BRI

) RENEEEXAGBENER
BEMNzEtAEcBELE
EDRIREBEEL G ERE
12BN REEES
ZAF19REERH ] &

RRGHE

i) BKEBHRUBRNDEBEMRZ
RNARXGHAREE RN B
EMZNRR 5B RN EY
SUABRMDBEBZHRZS
EHAMNBEEIRAIAE  ©
YehE B EARIE BB RS
HER S 257 LARRAA S 5 3RTE
HE R

i) WMEFEMBHREENFD
I FHELE 2 FERBEENR
ERIERR] D BFIELE
ZEE(MHEHRE)IREZ

RAERFTE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

c)

d)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net
of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree [(if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or another measurement basis
required by another standard.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

d)

e)

ANNUAL
2015/168

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Major costs incurred in restoring property, plant and
equipment to their normal working condition are
charged to profit or loss.
capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful

Improvements are

lives.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant
and equipment that has already been recognised is
added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is
probable that future economic benefits, in excess of
the originally assessed standard of performance of
the existing asset, will flow to the enterprise. All other
subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
ﬁi_ =

2.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write-off the cost of each asset over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:
Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of
the lease terms and 20%

Plant and machinery 10%

Computers 25-33%

Furniture, fixcures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

2. WEEBELEMITREETE
RMERSENZREE(E)

e)

M - BER®E(E)

HEME - BERRBEE 2 W
AERNEERLEREREEMS
FRFHEEEREECZRE KR
=R o

FrETIAEA ?iﬁzﬁﬁ—]ﬁﬁﬁ £

WIHSREE ZKAERHE - 3t
BRAZEEFRMT
HEMREE % % 20%
(AR H R2E)
R Kot 28 10%
B 25-33%
B KER 20%
By
TE 25%
W% - BEMERERB D 2/
ERFHAR - BB RAREER

C%ﬁﬁ y 2 ERABELESE - M

DIERATE - BERIERF
H&@&Eﬂﬁ%{ﬁﬁ(ﬁﬂﬁ)’\ FE
B o

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ke EEZERERAR

2 !



=5

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

f)

ANNUAL
2015/168

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans
and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

REPORT %

2. WEEBELEMITREETE
RMERSENZREE(E)

f)

@I A

TREENERABEINEEER
RATEZBHGZRI MR RR
REMBIRRRTER - ©REE
RemMBBEVZ AR FEFE - &
BEABRTEMEERSRAE
(ERBRRBEATEIKZERE
ElkeBABERIN BEEEBIR
DR BRI ZHERE AT R
BESZERABEMMER)NKBEE
IR - BB BEBBER A FE
SRz EREEX TR A BEEEM
A2 XHRA - gRREER AT

27
e

THEE

AEBEZz2RMEED HERMEK
FE-FEERMEEZERFEER
R ARBMKEILER - AREE
EBRERLEREAREMSEHRAIK
BOREZERAXNZEHE
o

B A

BERMEEZZ B EERMEEZ
A SHA AN A S 7 BIRA D BE T
BRBE 2% - BRF R EHLY)
WHREMEE 2 BHRF YK (HE
) ERHEMG RIS RA (B
A BRERAN R TR
HXNIBEZER  XHRAR
H A Bl ITE) ZFI=% -

B TAZMBRARER ML
FERR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries and cash
and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses, (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below), unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost less provision for
impairment.

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been impacted.

For all the Group’s financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

f)

ANNUAL
2015/168

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)]

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade and other receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables and amounts
due from group companies, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When trade receivables or amounts due from group
companies are considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2016
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)]

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and other financial liabilities. The Group
classifies its financial liabilities into other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

f)

ANNUAL
2015/168

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expenses over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
when appropriate, a short period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables,
other payables and accruals, amounts due to
subsidiaries and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Convertible bond

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that can be
converted to equity share capital at the option of the
holder, where the number of shares that would be
issued on conversion and the value of the
consideration that would be received at that time do
not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component
and an equity component.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bond (Continued)

An initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value
of the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the market rate of interest applicable
at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option. Any excess of
the fair value of the compound instrument over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the convertible bonds
equity reserve until either the bond is converted or
redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the convertible bonds equity
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the
liability component at the time of conversion, is
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the bond is
redeemed, the convertible bonds equity reserve is
released directly to retained profits/accumulated
losses.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

f)

ANNUAL
2015/168

Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

g)

Impairment of other assets other than goodwiill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment; and
— investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-
generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year

ended 31 March 2016

BE—F—NF=H=1—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

g)

ANNUAL
2015/168

Impairment of other assets other than goodwiill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

)

h)

Impairment of other assets other than goodwiill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Company is
required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill and available-for-sale financial
asset carried at cost are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash without notice and which
were within three months of maturity when acquired.
Cash and cash equivalents include investments and
advances denominated in foreign currencies provide
that they fulfill the above criteria.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents would also
include bank overdrafts and advances from banks
repayable within three months from the date of the
advance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

ANNUAL
2015/168

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value
at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
ﬁi_ =

2.

—NF=A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

)

Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
costs and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance costs are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy
on borrowing costs.

Lease where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets
and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
B2 —F—NFZH=+—HIFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

k) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and these
benefits can be measured reliably.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the
time when the goods are delivered to customers
and title has passed.

Income in respect of management services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Royalty income from the sub-licensing of
programme right and intellectual property right
is recognised on an accrual basis evenly over
the contract period.

Licensing income from event is recognised when
the events are completed or the services are
provided and the amount can be measured
reliably.

Income from box office takings is recognised
when the services have been rendered to the
buyers.

Income from investments in film production is
recognised when the films are released for
distribution.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the interest
rates applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case they are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income and expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year

ended 31 March 2016

HE—F—NF=H=1+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

ANNUAL
2015/168

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

m)

n)

o)

Films in progress and film rights

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated at cost
incurred to date, less any identified impairment loss.
Cost is transferred to film rights upon completion.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Their costs are
amortised over the underlying licence period, with
reference to projected revenue.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes which are
defined contribution schemes are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangement

Share options granted to directors and employees in
an equity-settled share-based payment arrangement

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date
and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year

ended 31 March 2016

BE—F—NF=H=1—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

o)

ANNUAL
2015/168

Share-based payment arrangement (Continued)

Share options granted to directors and employees in
an equity-settled share-based payment arrangement
(Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. \When share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Share options granted to advisors

For share options granted to advisors in exchange for
services, they are measured at the fair value of the
services received. If the entity cannot estimate reliably
the fair value of the services received, the entity shall
measure their value, indirectly, by reference to the
fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair
values of the services are recognised as expenses
immediately, unless the services qualify for
recognition as assets, with corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

p)

q)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are
also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

q) Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong
Kong Dollars (“HKD”) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

From 1 April 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a
foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to
a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are reattributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in the translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
B2 —F—NFZH=+—HIFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

r) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the entity that is preparing its financial statements
(“reporting entity”).

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to a reporting entity if that
person:

() has control or joint control over the
reporting entity;

(i) has significant influence over the reporting
entity; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the reporting entity or of a
parent of the reporting entity.

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the reporting entity are
members of the same group (which means
that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)] one entities is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2016
B2 —F—NFZH=+—HIFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

r) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of
the following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-empolyment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the
reporting entity. If the reporting entity is
itself such a plan,
employers are also related to the reporting

entity;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provide key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

s) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors that make strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities as at the end of

the reporting period are as follows:

3. &#MTR

(a) £RMIAEH

AEERBEEREERBERR
EMRZREENT

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THETT
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including cash and ~ EF M EWFIE (BIEES K
cash equivalents) REZEW)
Trade receivables JRE W BR 3R 1,834 3,831
Financial assets included in other STAEMERFIEREEZ
receivables and deposits SREE 17,887 15,402
Payments to parties for procurement RIRETREBMES
for investment of cinema business Yt 7 1A 47,010 47,010
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER S 131,913 128,974
198,644 195,217
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial liabilities measured REEKATTEZERAR
at amortised cost
Trade payables FETER X 1,896 2,141
Financial liabilities included in other s AE B FOB T
payables and accruals HEZeHAE 53,936 52,775
Convertible bonds R E S 14,889 19,331
70,721 74,247
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. @MIAGE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEMEERMNRBE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial REBEXEMEZEGTEER : ™

risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and % BB (B 1E SN E & B & R & &

interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The &) EERRMASECRER -

Group’s overall risk management programme focuses AEEEERBREESIHE S

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks RIS 2 A TR A E  WER

to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s D AREBYPBRIE 2 BETFF

financial performance. &

(il Foreign currency risk (i) SMEREEE
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk AEBFTEE 2 INER R F
primarily through sales, purchases and ZREUABESIDEEE
recognised assets and liabilities that are PNz EBARZEBERE
denominated in a currency other than the BREENEBE - EEMIEA
functional currency of the operations to which BzEBEEFEAET([E
they relate. The currencies giving rise to this T RARE(TARE]) -

risk are primarily United States Dollars (“USD”)
and Renminbi (“RMB”).

The Group currently does not expect any AEEERTARETLL BT
significant movements in the exchange rate of 2 BB B AT BB KR ED
USD to HKD and it is mainly exposed to the ERETEERARKREZ
effects of fluctuation in RMB. The Group & o REBEH B EINE
currently does not have a foreign currency HhBE e A EREE
hedging policy, however, the management WONERE  WHREGER
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will EEEE KRINER R o

consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

ANNUAL REPORT F#
2015/168



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016

BEz—F

—NF=A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(ii]

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk due to
its bank deposits and borrowings, respectively,
carrying interest at variable and fixed rates
which are disclosed in notes 21 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy and does not use any
derivative instruments to reduce its economic
exposure to the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for the Group’s variable-rate bank
deposits. The analysis is prepared assuming
these financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 25 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting period interest
rate risk internally to key management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, there would have been no significant
impact on the Group’s post-tax profit/loss for
the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015
respectively. This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable rate bank deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

liii]  Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash at bank, trade and other receivables
and deposits. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at bank are placed with high-credit-quality
institutions and directors of the Group consider
that the credit risk for such is minimal.

In respect of trade receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. Debtors
with overdue balances, which will be reviewed
on a case-by-case basis, are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect of
trade and other receivables, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate
allowances are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Group
consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iii]

(iv]

Credit risk [(Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk from trade and
other receivables are set out in notes 17 and
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the board of directors when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

3.

®MTR(E)

(b)

MRREBEERNRBER(B)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016

BE—F—NF=H=1—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. £MIA(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIBREBREBEENREE(E)
(Continued)
(iv]  Liquidity risk (Continued) (v] #“EEzERE(E)
The following table details the remaining TERARBREPRAEEIE
contractual maturities at the end of the TTHES B E (A4 IEREIR
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative BemE:tE  8iERaeH
financial liabilities, which are based on AR GHZ B FIR (Al R4 5
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including REBAZHR)AE ZFERF
interest payments computed using contractual B)ZFIpEHRNE - A KRAK
rates or, if floating, based on the rates current NAAHBRER 2 ZFEH
at the end of the reporting period) and the HiZ5F15 ©
earliest date the company can be required to
pay.
2016
B
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within 1 yearbut 2 years but
undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
Carrying cash flow  on demand 2 years 5years  More than
amount  AHEEE -ERE ZR-EE8  SHWER 5 years
REE HReRELE EZX HDRWE HREF SREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TARL TART THRT TERL TARL
Trade payables JE(SBER 1,896 1,896 1,896 - - -
Financial liabilities included in AL RERFER
other payables and accruals [EitFEz2RER 53,936 53,936 53,936 - - -
Convertible bonds mHBRES 14,889 30,000 - - - 30,000
70,721 85,832 55,832 - - 30,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

3.

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. @MIAGE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIBREBREBEENREE(E)
(Continued)
(iv]  Liquidity risk (Continued) (v] #“EEzERE(E)
2015
“Z-hf
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but
undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
Carrying cash flow  on demand 2 years Syears  More than
amount  AXIFERRE —Fmg HR-FE SRRFE 5 years
RHE ReRELE EER DRFE DREEF LREE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T TATL TATL TAL TR T
Trade payables EARESA 2,141 2,141 2,141 - - -
Financial liabilities included in STARMERFER
ather payables and accruals [EtFEz e RER 52,775 52,775 92,775 - - -
Convertible bonds mhkES 19,331 45,000 - - - 45,000
74,247 99,916 54,916 - - 45,000
Fair values (c) 2FE

(c)

The fair values of debt elements of convertible bonds
is determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as inputs.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2016 and 2015.

ABRBEESES D 2 A AR
BAREERN  RAAUBREZE
BHERZ2EEXERIERH AR
FRBRIRBEREDITMERTE

REERRARBERASES S
BMTAZERAEEEN -T—AF
R-F-RE=ZR=1+—-AZAF
BEUBEAZER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

a) Impairment of films in progress and film rights

The management of the Group reviews the progress
of the films and film rights at the end of each
reporting period and identifies the slow-maoving film in
progress that is no longer suitable for use in
production. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such film in progress and film
rights based primarily on the recoverable amount. In
addition, the Group carries out review on each film in
progress and film rights at the end of the reporting
period and makes allowance for any film in progress
that production is no longer proceed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

b)

c)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortization
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill). This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to
severe industry activities. Management will increase
the depreciation and amortization charges where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives or
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable and amortization lives and therefore
depreciation and amortization expense in future
periods.

Impairment of trade and other receivables, and
amounts due from a director of a subsidiary and
non-controlling interest

The Group makes impairment loss on doubtful debts
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables and other receivables, and amounts due
from a director of a subsidiary and non-controlling
interests. Impairment is applied to trade receivables
and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. \Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact carrying value of
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.

EXEsHE T R FIER (7F)

b)

c)

¥ BERRERELEE(H
BRI 2 ERAFH

AEEEREBEEYE  BELXR
B EE (BERIN 2T
ERFHRABTEREHER -
&IEEH TRIBEE R 2
X BEMRBRENVEEERRA
ERFHBELRIEL - WA
H T 8137 R 3 5 i F B R ARAT
REBH2TPMEREAES - B
A EAFRER RS - B
EBRgmirEREIHEER g
MRS ER R EZAHIHE
ZIFRBEEE - E AT AT LG R
RITE R EHFRABUMPERE
BZITENEERRX -

P Ui B R e L B WK OR - B R
—XMBAR - REEREARE
W I 42 R HE A SR TR R B

7R 6= AR 15 5 PR SR R e EL A FE U
R BR—FHMBAR—RES
TR B M IR b 2 BB 2 AT R
B2 2 fH& & R M 1F R ARRUE
B8 - BHBREMEFHIBERE
RN A0 AT YR [ A RE - 8 A FE L
R M B A YRR BOR(E - 2
BIRERS KB R fhat - BIEMA
BIREREfER - AIREERSTE
Bt AR B A IR 2 EUGRIE )
RARFI X AREE

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ke EEZERERAR

2 |



55

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year
ﬁi_ =

ended 31 March 2016

—NF=A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

d)

e)

f)

ANNUAL
2015/168

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Valuation of share options and convertible bonds
granted

The fair value of share options granted and
convertible bonds were calculated using the binomial
pricing model based on the Group’s management’'s
significant inputs into calculation the volatility of share
price, weighted average share prices and exercise
price of the share options granted. Furthermore, the
calculation assumes nil future dividends.

Realisation of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets relating to tax losses are
recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred taxation assets and taxation in
the periods in which such estimate is changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016

BE—FE—NF=ZH="+—HILFE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive directors
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group’s
operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
two operating segments for the year:

Cinema investment and management — cinema investment
and provision of cinema management service.

Filmed entertainment, new media exploitations and
licensing businesses — movie production, licensing and
derivatives, crossover marketing, provision of interactive
contents, artist development and last miles engagement.

The revenue from external customers reported to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Revenue between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions.

Segment result represents the profit or loss by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
including directors’ salaries, investment and other income,
finance costs and income tax expense. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

SEEFE

B R (T BT MR
RE 2 MEBRELH - AEEEH
LHRBEBEESEREBEE -

REEMS  AEERAFES D HM

B DB

T E MEE
EHEARF ©

— BT E MR b

/ ZEZ

BRIREE KB E NSRS —
BERXRF BrERITEERE  BR
MSHE RHEPAT  BAERRK
BT -

FERERE < KEIEES 2 Ktk

BGGIERRANRE B2 AREE -
/\*BFEJ,ZJ%Z SRENTRFEREESR
ZIEFRAER ©

SEMEEE D B2 B3 RES RS
ROTBAA - BEEEHS  BERE

A~ BERA NSRS © th 5
AEREERREREANETERD K
ReHEDBRBZFAETR -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ke EEZERERAR

7 |



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results,
assets and liabilities by reportable and operating segment.

Year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-Z-1E-A=t-HLEE

SWEHE (F)

TREAZHREEEDTF O AKE 2
Yegs

Year ended 31 March 2015
HE_TZ-R€-R=1-HI%E

Filmed Filmed
entertainment entertainment
Cinema new media Cinema new media
investment exploitations investment exploitations
and and licensing and and licensing
management businesses Total management businesses Total
EYRY. (7
FEBRRR MEERER
FRREREE RREER @ FhRARER FTERE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
THET TEL TEL FEL TEL TEL
Segment Revenue 2k 73,441 1,333 74,774 76,820 141 76,961
Segment Results PHEE
Reportable segment; result UERAHEE 5,633 (7,814) (2,181) 11,469 (9,259) 2,210
Interest income FIBMA 178 50 228 132 73 205
Unallocated corparate expenses AR ERT (18,663) (13,568)
Share-based payments PRG BEE 7 3 (21,600) (48,076)
Finance costs BERAK (2,529) (2,908)
Loss before taxation BREiaIEE (44,745) (60,137)
Segment Assets THEE
Reportable segment assets ERDBEE 146,724 71,516 218,240 150,813 73,594 224,407
Unallocated corporate assets ROMOEEE 9,290 14,061
Consolidated total assets GREELE 227,530 238,468
Segment Liabilities PHEE
Reportable segment liabilities ERHBERE 53,758 14,598 68,356 58,695 11,740 70,435
Tax payables JERTHE 2,034 2,101
Convertible bonds #RkES 14,889 19,331
Unallocated corporate liabilities KOECERE 3,603 3,406
Consalidated total liabilties GARBRERE 88,882 95,273
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment information and
allocating resources between segment:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate assets.

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than tax liabilities, convertible bonds and

unallocated corporate liabilities.

Other segment information:

5. SEMEHGE)

MERDBER D BELRERME

— FBEESEZFEZHRIE - HER
DEEEEERI -

— MBRBEOEERIZ2HOEL - R

AR TBRRESRRDEEE
BERRIN -

Hittp &R :
Year ended 31 March 2016

BZ-E-"E-A=t-ALEE

Filmed entertainment

new media

Cinema investment exploitations and
and management  licensing businesses Corporate level Total

E¥RE.

HREARR
¥RRERER B EER tXER a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAR TAR TER
Additions to non-current assets HRBEERE 153 - a4 194
Interest income FIBHA 178 50 - 228
Depreciation bl 8,785 - 502 9,287
Impairment losses HEHSE = 8,653 - 8,653

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ke EEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T e MBHRERME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
HE-F-AF=A=+—ALFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information: (Continued)

5. SEBEH(E)
Hitn D HER : (48)

Year ended 31 March 2015
BHE-Z-RE-A-1-BLEE

Filmed entertainment

new media

Cinema investment explaitations and
and management  licensing businesses Corparate level Total

ERRE

MRERER
FRRERER BEEES GXRER &3t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAR TAL TEL TAR
Additions to non-current assets FRPEENE 1,559 - 12 1,571
Interest income FEHA 132 73 - 205
Depreciation & 9,068 23 518 9,609
Impairment losses HESE - 8,591 - 8,591

Revenue from major products and services: REFEEMRRBZWE :

The Group’s revenue from its major products and services

were as follows:

REERBTEZERMERG 2 BmWT

2016 2015

—®-—xE —T-AF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHBxT T

Cinema business T ER 73,441 76,820
Production and distribution of film rights, BRI RAE R EETT - ERER

royalty and licensing income R RE U 1,333 141

74,774 76,961

m ANNUAL REPORT F#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SEBEHE (&)

Geographical information: WEEH

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the People’s AEBEFENEBRPEARLME T
Republic of China (excluding Hong Kong). The geographical BREBEB)KEER - BP2MELER
location of customers is based on the location of the BERPREMES - MARERIRBER
customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods or R ERMBEEZHENE - W -
services. The geographical location of the non-current MERZENS  DIZEEER WIS
assets is based on the physical location of assets in the D MHAEEME  AIREBLEUE
case of property, plant and equipment, and the location of g5 o REINE P Z Wam Kig i
the operation to which they are allocated in the case of BN ZIEMBEEERFFINNT :

goodwill. Revenue from external customers and information
about non-current assets by geographical location are
detailed below:

Revenue from

external customers ~ Non-current assets
REMBEF 2 lzd FRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015

=E-XE —T-[F SF-AE —T-6F
HK$'000 HK$0OO0O HK$'000 HKPOOO
FHAZ TR TR TER

Hong Kong HA - 125 830 1,292
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) HE(TREEB) 74,659 76,820 27,240 37,514
Others Hib 115 16 - -

74,774 76,961 28,070 38,806

Revenue from major customers: REFEREF W :

There are no major customers contributing over 10% of HE-ZT—R"F=ZA=1+T—HIEFE "
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2016 BEFEZEZEPERAEEWEER10%
(2015: Nil). (ZE—RF  #)-

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

6. TURNOVER 6.

An analysis of Group’s turnover for the year from
operations, is as follows:

WaT :

2016 2015
—®-A%E —T-nf
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Revenue from cinema business REFRERZ Wt 73,441 76,820

Production and distribution of film rights £4E N 3778 22 hiu e 572 -

Royalty and licensing income BRI MR RE WA 761 141

74,774 76,961

7. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 7. Htuli SR HEMBUIA

2016 2015

—E—XRE —T—hF

HK$’000 HK$' 000

FET FHIT

Interest income B YA 228 205
Gain on disposal of equity interests HETE B 2 W

in the film in progress - 344

Government grants* T AL * 434 3,713
Return on the feasibility study of B—lErEE 2r Tk

a film project IR AT 606 -

Others HAth 1,551 60

2,819 4,322

The government grants represent the subsidies received by the
Group from the government for the operation of cinemas in PRC.
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these
grants.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

8.

FINANCE COSTS 8. MIEAE
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Imputed interest on convertible bonds  AJ#IES 2 HEEF B 2,529 2,908
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRRAER
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRALATESIEE 0B (FEA) THIEIE -
(crediting):
2016 2015
—E-REF —F-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FAT
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN B & 700 700
Direct expenses of movie and BY REFTREEBEERX
licensing businesses 26 64
Direct expenses of cinema business TREBEERX 31,434 32,754
Depreciation e 9,287 9,609
Exchange loss/(gain) bE 518, (M) 1,208 (99)
Impairment losses WIEEE 8,653 8,591
— Impairment on trade receivables — FERERFURE 649 7,489
— Impairment on films in progress — ERBEYRE B 792
— Impairment on film rights — BENERE 8,004 310
Fixed assets written off W EE & E 34 634
Operating lease rental in respect of HAMEz KEHOES
rented premises 7,616 7.847
Staff costs (including directors’ BETRA(REESEHE)
remuneration)
— Salaries and allowances — e &EA 15,412 13,724
— Equity settled share-based — BREE UMD BER 2 N
payments 3,026 4,615
— Retirement scheme contributions — RIRET &I 2,220 2,113
Equity settled share-based payments BT i e AR B A RR () B LT
paid to advisors pANE: 18,574 41,461

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the Company’s
directors for the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015
were as follows:

10. EEM&

BHE_E2—XRXEkZFE—RF=A
—t—HIEFEENRENAARES

ZBzmT

Year ended 31 March 2016

BE-Z-—R"E=B=1+—-HILEE

Salaries,
allowances Share
and other based
Directors’ benefits payments
fee ¥e 2H URGA Total
ExHe RHEMER ERzZGX mat
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
THET FTHET FTET TET
Executive Directors HTEZE
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi EEY P - - 835 835
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly IEpE 120 = 313 433
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BREZLE 180 - 313 493
Mr. Chong Lee Chang (Note 1) RERTEMZET) 55 = = 55
Mr. Lau Man Kit EIe- S 120 - 313 433
Non-executive Director HHNITEE
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang, RBEFT T

Roberta 120 - 313 433
Independent non-executive Directors BV HHTEE
Mr. Wong Chak Keung BEREE 120 - 313 433
Mr. Chum Kwan Yue, Desmond BB (Bt T)

(Note 1) 55 - 313 368
Ms. Choi Mei Ping BEFLL 120 - 313 433
Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk [Note 2) BEBEE (HE2) 36 = = 36

926 - 3,026 3,952
Notes: Biat -

1. Retired on 14 September 2015.

2. Appointed on 11 December 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 10. EF#ME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z—RF=A=+—HItFE

Salaries,
allowances Share
and other based
Directors’ benefits ~ payments
fee F& 2R RGO A Total
50 REMEMN ERIAR mEt
HK$O00 HK$FOOO HKFOOO HK$0OOO
FHAT FHET FAT FHET
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi 255 E - - 1,023 1,023
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly EbE ko 120 - 449 569
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BREHELE 180 - 448 629
Mr. Chong Lee Chang RERRALE 120 - 449 569
Mr. Lau Man Kit B E 120 25 449 594
Non-executive Director FHNTEF
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang, REPEHT R+
Roberta 120 - 449 569
Independent non-executive Directors — Bv FEH77EH
Mrs. Chen Chou Mei Mei Vivien R E R+
(Note 3) (Mf7#3) 45 - 449 494
Mr. Chum Kwan Yue, Desmond BEMLE 120 - 449 569
Mr. Wong Chak Keung BEREL 120 - 449 569
Ms. Choi Mei Ping (Note 4] BXTzL(Hitd) 46 - - 46
991 25 4,615 5,631
Notes: Bt -

3. Retired on 15 August 2014.

4. Appointed on 14 November 2014.

3. R-ZE-OENA+HEARE-

4. RZE-—OFE+—A+HBEEEFE -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 1. EEHFAR

Of the five individuals in the Group with the highest
emoluments, four (2015: four) are the directors of the
Company whose emoluments are disclosed above. The

AEELEREHMARES O (=
T—RHF  WR)RARAES  HFHM
ERNEXHEE -SRI —R(ZFT—H%F:

emoluments of the remaining one individual (2015: one), is —H)ANEBZFHFMT -
as follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries and other benefits Hre MEHMET 658 631
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 18 18
676 649

Analysis of emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and other employees) by emolument
range is as follows:

hEsEmTMAR(BRESEREME
8) 2 HmsmsE 2 o

Number of employees

EE®E
2016 2015
—B-XE -—T-HF
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T AN 5 4
Exceeding HK$1,000,000 but #2838 1,000,000 # /8
not exceeding HK$1,500,000 i 1,500,000/% 7T = ’|

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to
join the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, during the years ended 31 March 2016 and
2015, no directors waived any emoluments.

ANNUAL REPORT F#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
B2 —F—NFZH=+—HIFFE

12. TAXATION 12. R1A
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
The taxation charge recognised RIEE AR 2 BB HBIE
in profit or loss comprises:
Current tax BN ERT T
The PRC A 2,143 2,839

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made by the
Group as the Group did not derive any assessable profits in
Hong Kong for both years ended 31 March 2016 and
2015.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax
at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as follows:

HRASERBE_Z—R"EFE-FT
—hAF=ZA=t—HRLMEFELER
BEEETMERTOEN - SARKET
BERBBNE VRS -

BE_Z—XRXFEkZE—RF=A
—t+—HIEFE - AEFBRRAER
R 5% AR BIEMSH -

NEEFIBEGA BRI Z B AT
EIEEERAT ¢

2016 2015
—F-Xx"F —FIF
HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

Loss before taxation BREATE 1B (44,745) (60,137)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMETE 2 MIA (7,383) (9,923)
Income not subject to taxation TEHR A (780) (527)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose R HUBER SRS 2 B2 9,796 12,533
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries BCE@’T?H%EEWMZW%@ Gl

operating in other jurisdictions ZARBE 8 495 753
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RERMBEBRMBTE 15 3
Taxation charged for the year REFRIESL W 2,143 2,839

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016

BEz—F

12.

13.

—NF=A=+—HIFE
TAXATION (Continued)
Deferred tax assets not recognised

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses arising in the PRC and Hong Kong of
approximately HK$7,058,000 (2015: HK$6,044,000)
and approximately HK$40,090,000 (2015:
HK$40,090,000) respectively available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profits stream. Under current tax
regulation, tax losses arising in the PRC can be carried
forward for five years from the year in which the respective
loss arose while the tax losses arising in Hong Kong can
be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At the end of the reporting period, undistributed profits of
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$33,326,000
(2015: HK$27,370,000). Withholding tax resulting from
the distribution of such profits would amount approximately
to HK$8,481,000 (2015: HK$6,842,000]) if they are
distributed to holding companies/shareholders outside of
PRC. However, no deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised in this respect as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE

0]

14. BEREBR
Basic loss per share () BREXEA
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
HK cents HK cents
AL it
Total basic loss per share BREREBER (1.46) (2.06)

The loss and weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation of basic loss per share
are as follows:

R ESRERNEE 2 BB LT
BRI BB T

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loss for the year attributable to KAFIHAE ANEERFEEIR
owners of the Company (49,346) (65,947)
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hF

St EERERERZ
B i RN 15 B B

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic loss per share

3,377,828,425 3,202,308,809

(i) Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share has been presented for the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. The
computation of diluted loss per share for the year did
not assume the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding convertible bonds and the exercise of
share options as their assumed conversion and
exercise would decrease the loss per share in the
year.

(i) SR®FEHE

BE-ZF—FE-FT-H%=A
=t HIFEREZIEREE
B8 - sTEAFE SREEERR
W BB RA R B A ARITEEZ AR
BHECER R LBRECETE
FRRA/BRRABMITERSEHFR
BhEERD -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. % - BER®RE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvement  Plant and equipment Motor
&  machinery Computers B vehicles Total
NELE  BEREE Bl HER®RE "E o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL THEL ThEL
Cost KA
At 1 April 2014 RZE-MEMA—H 27,706 20,228 1,181 6,404 1,797 57,316
Additions HE - 786 15 770 - 1,971
Written off fiisa - (229) - (551) - (776)
Currency realignment RS 33 24 1 7 - 65
At 31 March 2015 and RZZE-RF=A=1-H
1 April 2015 EZZ-nEMA-A 27,739 20,813 1,197 6,630 1,797 58,176
Additions HE - 128 17 49 - 194
Written off ke - (30) (82) (19) = (131)
Currency realignment EHAER (1,371) (1,029) (42) (320) - (2,762)
At 31 March 2016 WZE-R"E=R=1+—H 26,368 19,882 1,090 6,340 1,797 55,477
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE
At 1 April 2014 RZE-EFMA—H 6,201 2,233 773 1,475 150 10,832
Charge for the year EFXM 5,542 2,089 205 1,324 449 9,609
Written off fiisa - (29) - (117 - (142)
Currency realignment AR 12 5 1 3 - 21
At 31 March 2015 and R-F-AF=A=t-H
1 April 2015 LZE-REMA—H 11,755 4,302 979 2,685 599 20,320
Charge for the year EETH 5,396 2,033 113 1,296 449 9,287
Written off s - 6) (53) (38) s (97)
Currency realignment g (703) (257) (37) (156) = (1,153)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-REZA=1+-H 16,448 6,072 1,002 3,787 1,048 28,357
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"E=ZA=1-H 9,920 13,810 88 2,553 749 27,120
At 31 March 2015 RZE-R1F=A=1+-H 15,984 16,511 218 3,945 1,198 37,856
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

16. GOODWILL 16. B8
2016 2015
—E-—RF —E-hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAT
Cost AR
At the beginning and at the end FNRFHK
of the year 20,718 20,718
Accumulated impairment losses iR EEE
At the beginning and at the end FRFH
of the year (19,768) (19,768)
Carrying amount IRMEIE
At the end of the year FHR 950 950
The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated BEREE(KINERIRRERBR) S
impairment losses) was allocated to cash-generating units DRERGEAELML - BB -
as follows:
2016 2015
—EB-XE —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Cinema business — Cinema Group T EB — EXhtaE 950 950

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
B2 —F—NFZH=+—HIFFE

16. GOODWILL (Continued) 16. 8 (&)

Part of the goodwill arose from the acquisition of Raxco
Assets Corp. (“Raxco”) during the year ended 31 March
2011, which was engaged in new media exploitations
business. For Raxco, the management considers that it is
difficult to set a concrete time-line for the development in
this segment, and future revenue cannot be reliably
projected, full impairment of the goodwill was made in the
year ended 31 March 2014.

Part of the goodwill arose from the acquisition of
LB (E/8) AR AR (“Shanghai Bingo”) together with
its subsidiaries (“Cinema Group”) during the year ended 31
March 2013, which was engaged in cinema business.

During the year, the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of goodwill associated with the Raxco and Cinema
Group by reference to value-in-use. The calculations used
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the management of the Company covering a five-year
period. For the Cinema Group, management believes that
the recoverable amount would exceed its carrying amount
as at 31 March 2016 and therefore, no impairment is
necessary.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

@i*T**¢:H:+*E¢¢?'
DEABELEBWBNEHERBMAEE
ﬂ‘% 2 Raxco Assets Corp. ([Raxco]) °

FtRaxcom=s ' BEIEERSHUER
ZoHTE N AERKME BT £
BIRRWZ  MRBE_ZT—UF=A

=+ RLEFERBEFEL2H0RE -

—=F=ZA=1+—BLFE"
EELARBREZREB 2L
(L8 BRAR(TE LEED
WJ;' al([EFREE]) -

o2

/Iﬂi & d» H
2”\“3 ||
i m}% /JH{

)SZ

RAFEAN  REBKL2EFAEER
FiEHRaxco REFEBEH 2 EE
ZAIE R RE o WIBETEFRAEREAR
ARIEBEIERE R EFEHM
BEEZHREERERN REZHREE
M BEERAFAIKESERERE
RZT—R"F=ZA=+—HZEEE"
B ERENE -

EREEAEMERZZZMR/R

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—HF

Growth rate B 3% 3%
Discount rate BLIR & 15% 15%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The aging of the Group’s trade receivables is analysed as

17. FBEULARSR

REE 7 RRERFBRE DT ¢

follows:

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within 30 days 30HAR 1,617 1,828
31-60 days 31-60H 174 81
61-90 days 61-90H 7 -
Over 90 days 90H 19,017 20,254
20,815 22,163
Provision Bt (18,981) (18,332)

1,834 3,831

For cinema business and filmed entertainment, new media
exploitations and licensing business segment, the credit
terms granted by the Group to its customers normally
ranged from COD (cash-on-delivery) to 120 days. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. All trade receivables are expected to
be recovered within one year.

SRRPE RIS A M ERIREE - R IR B
METREBOEME  AREKTHE
BEPZEEH—RAREXKE120H
T o REBEZHHE R @ fE WA
HIEBREZ BREEEREETHR
AR o FT A RURKTEMIN —F
M E -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ke EEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly. Before impairment, there was approximately
HK$19,900,000 receivable from Huayi Brothers Media
Corporation (“Huayi Brothers”) for the movie titled “Journey
To The West: Conquering the Demons” (“JTTW”). Included
in the aforesaid HK$19,900,000 receivable was
approximately HK$18,332,000 recorded in the Group’s
books for the year ended 31 March 2013 and carried
forward over the three years ended 31 March 2016. In
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 Mach 2014, the Group
considered not to record the shortfall of approximately
HK$1,568,000 as revenue in its financial statements on
the ground of recognition of the dispute with Huayi
Brothers and the immateriality of the shortfall amount.
Since the trade receivable balance was long outstanding
and the Group has requested Huayi Brothers to settle the
receivables but no positive feedback was obtained, the
Group has taken legal actions to recover the receivable
during the year ended 31 March 2015. Although 1t =M
=R ARERT (Beijing No.3 Intermediate People’s Court,
(“the PRC Court”)) rejected all of the petitions by Lofty Gain
Investments Limited (“Lofty Gain”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, on 15 April 2015, the
Company is of the opinion that, Huayi Brothers objectively
failed to perform its commitment to sign the agreement
and to perform a supplemental agreement thereto. After
seeking legal opinions on the judgment, Lofty Gain
determined to lodge an appeal against the judgment made
by the PRC Court and the notice of appeal has been lodged
already during the year ended 31 March 2016. As
detailed in note 36 — Event After The Reporting Period,
the Group has obtained a preliminary offer for the
settlement from Huayi Brothers but the settlement is yet
to be reached. The appeal has already been withdrawn by
the Group subsequently. Although the Group still has
confidence to recover the outstanding balance through
continuing civil actions or negotiation with Huayi Brothers,
in view of the long outstanding period of the corresponding
receivable, the Group has impaired the remaining balance
of approximately HK$649,000 during the year ended 31
March 2016. The amount of receivables recovered, if any,
in future will be recognized as other income. The
movement in the allowance is as follows:

17. BEUARR (&)

BB 3R A B 1B 1 SR PR R 2 80
ABE - BRI E R B 8 A
PRIE - EULER T B BERE
W BB AR M < AL RT - AR AR
B [T o AR ) (| 7ot o PR ) A
[ ETVEY VI N ES
7% ]) $08#) 19,900,000 7% » +it
JE W 5118 19,900,000 % T B &R E =
=g A-+-HILERRAS
B E PR A R B E T —AF=
A=+-Ar=-REE&82H
18,332,000 7T - REEAEREE
—E_mE=A=+—BHLFEIEA
B IS MAES - A DRSNS
BMAUH AR EBETEA - #UAEE
A 854 LB 3 % 6 24840 1,568,000
BT ABE AR o MR IR A B
R - BARE D ERERER 5
1675 B9 A M SROB - HESE SR 75 E 1 @
o HAEECREE % — A=
=+ — AR RECE R BIKE A B
RIRHE - BE L RME =P RARK
R(REARD A —E—RENA+H
AREAAREENBARBRIAS
BAR( A& EHFREL - EAL
ARAEM FEE R BREET AR
% BRI BITH T Bk o AR
BAUARE R - mEAE ST EER
FEHRIEE - YERBRE_2
—ANE=A=+-AILFELIAME
SR o WK 36 B Bk B
FrEtin  ARECEEBR RS2 S
AR - N R TR - 2K o BB
BB E - BEARBNARLE
B R B AR BRI SR B I
KBRS - B BRI R
MAREE ALEORBE_T—X
F=A=+—HIEFERS TRELD
649,000/ 7Lt RS - B #4071
BRGOR E A RN R
BT

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THT FAT

At the beginning of year F 1) 18,332 10,843
Impairment RIE 649 7,489
At the end of the year FR 18,981 18,332
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 17. BUIRSR (B)

The aging analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

I E\HAR BB AR KR LR BEZE
WS RE AT AN T

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHER FAET

Neither past due nor impaired I g B slORVE 1,617 1,828
Past due but not impaired: 2360 HA{E MR A -

Less than 1 month past due #EA 1 E A LA 174 81

1 to 3 months past due BE = 3E A 7 -

More than 3 months past due B HA3E A A = 36 1,922

1,834 3,831

Receivables at 31 March 2016 and 2015 that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of
customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables at 31 March 2016 and 2015 that were past
due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group or
with appropriate impairment allowance accounted for.
Based on past experience, management believes that no
further impairment allowance was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral over
these balances.

R-E—RER-_E—RFE=A=+—
B - 37 e BRI (E 2 RN G I B R %
WA R Esk 2 B AR -

RZE—RERZZE—RF=A=*+—
B B EEREZERGIET HE—
HEAEEERIRHEHNIEEEE
BERBREZBIEFARB - BEBRT
K AR EEEZUEBEREHRE
BOERAIT2HKE EBEMREE
BRMZEERIEL BN ERE - A%
EUEpZEaRsaTaERm -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

18.

19.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

18. HiEWRIE - MERTAFMNR

PREPAYMENTS Ia
2016 2015
—®-AF —T-n%F
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FERT FHT
Other receivables (Note) H it pEU B (AYaE) 17,399 12,902
Deposits and prepayments Re RIERHKIE 1,304 4,468
18,703 17,370

Note:

Included in the balance was a deposit paid of approximately HK$8,342,000
(2015: HK$10,180,000) regarding the acquisition of assets for cinema
business in Chengdu and Chongging. The Group has terminated the
acquisition plan and the vendor has agreed to repay the deposit. During the
year, an amount of approximately HK$1,838,000 (2015: approximately
HK$1,482,000) has been collected from the vendor.

PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR PROCUREMENT FOR
INVESTMENT OF CINEMA BUSINESS

Pursuant to the announcement for the joint venture
agreement (“JV agreement”) dated 9 June 2011, a
subsidiary of the Company entered into a JV agreement
with CineChina Limited (“CineChina”) for the investment of
cinema business in the PRC.

The payments were made to a director of a 70% owned
subsidiary, who is also a director and shareholder of
CineChina, and to CineChina, a 30% shareholder of the
above-mentioned subsidiary for the purpose of materializing
the JV agreement:

Biret

EREERRBREERYREBRBEEZ BN
©#78,342,000/8 L (=F— 14 : 10,180,000
BT c AREEKILKER S BESRBEER
& o RAFE - BEEHEHEEX1,838,000/87T(=
T—AHF : #1,482,000% ) HIE °

19. MRBERRBFASHAIMZ
IR

BREABBRA-_ZT——FANLBMEE
wE((EERZE]D FE2AE  KRF
— X Kt B & 7] HECineChina Limited
([CineChinal) Bt R BU4% & 2Bt 375 7]

M A B

MR AEEEAEREMINFTARF
H70%ESZHBRARZ —RES (%
E =5 ACneChinaz EEMIE) &
CineChina (¥ & L i} B~ 7] 30% ## 2
ZPRE) 2 F/IA ¢

2016 2015
—E-REF —FE-HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Amount paid to a director of a subsidiary TRHF—BHEBRARES
ZFRIB 16,979 16,979
Amount paid to CineChina 5 F CineChina 2 518 26,786 26,786
Amount paid to an independent third party ST —RBALE =T ZFIA 3,245 3,245
47,010 47,010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

19. PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR PROCUREMENT FOR 19, WBRBAXREBAEHXFZ

INVESTMENT OF CINEMA BUSINESS (Continued)

Under the prevailing legal requirements in the PRC, certain
restrictions are imposed on foreign investors for taking up
majority stake in cinema business in the PRC. In
accordance with legal opinion from PRC lawyer, the
approval for engaging in the foregoing business by the
subsidiaries of the Company has not been obtained from
the respective PRC authorities during the year ended 371
March 2012 and the organising of the above cinema
business had not been completed at 31 March 2012. The
director of a subsidiary, CineChina and an Independent
third party (collectively, “these parties”) held the fund for
the Group and would settle the cost incurred in
procurement of the investment of cinema business in the
PRC.

By an internal group reorganization the capital of Shanghai
Bingo was transferred from a domestic enterprise to a
sino-foreign joint venture enterprise to comply with the
relevant regulatory requirement for foreign investors to
operate cinema business in the PRC during the year ended
31 March 2013. The Group legally owned 75% equity
interests in Shanghai Bingo to operate the cinema
business by mid-February 2013. The results of the cinema
projects, including Linan and Hangzhou cinema projects,
legally owned by Shanghai Bingo are consolidated into that
of the Group after completion of the internal group
reorganization. Pursuant to the agreement entered into
between the Group and these parties on 6 December
2012, these parties in principle agreed to act as a conduit
of payment on behalf of the Group for the development of
the cinema business in the PRC. These parties have
substantially utilized the funds for the cinema business
through their connection (the “Connection”) in the PRC. As
at 31 March 2016, approximately RMB33,372,000,
equivalent to HK$40,050,000 (2015: approximately
RMB33,372,000, equivalent to HK$42,132,000) have
been settled by the Connection and is included in other
payables of the Group. The Group, these parties and the
Connection have principally agreed to offset the funds held
by these parties with the amount payable to the Connection
upon finalization of all the construction and decoration cost
incurred and paid. The outstanding balances owed by these
parties will deem to be settled upon the execution of the
aforementioned offset.

I (&)

BBERITHRBUERZHRT  INREESE
EPBRBAZRESABOERE I
ATRH - REFBREMBHEZEZEE
B Rz —=-F=-A=+—8H1
FEARAMBRAR MAEEBTIEE
BHAERE EMER B Lo RER
CERTFER _E——F=A=+—8
mATEA o HEBARES * CineChina &
—BBNE=H(HBZETHNAF DR
AEEREEAS  TEEMREFEY
PREBEEZKA -

Bz Z—=F=ZA=+t—BIL&E"
FRANTEEEA e LS EARRH
—RNEGRLEERE —XFPIHEED
% BTN EE R R RLE b
XBZHEBEEERTE AEEEEHE
ke EEB75%KE WEZT—=F=
B A& R - TRAREE
BHE ke btEBEEERBZERRE
B(BEBRZEMMEXREER) 2 %8
RATTARNEBEE - REAEEEZ
ZAR _E——F+ - ANHEIT
2@ RZETHNFRANERE - HE
RERPBEZREBREAEE AR
HHREA - BBRZEFITNFTEFE 2
HEfEs((BMEES]D)  FEEREhk
E¥BHAABLEE - RZE—XNF=
A=+—H BEAGEEEHNARE
33,372,000t ( 48 & 7 40,050,000
BRRLI(ZE—RAF: HARE
33,372,000t ' #HE 142,132,000
BIL) c MABAREDTALREREME
RFRIE - NEE - ZFFTH 7 HEGEE
WIRA FRZERNBEEMBMESRIH
ZHEERBEERARE - AR
ZHIE REZETNTRECES -
BT LK IEE - ZEFT O ER K
BERIEEEECEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

20. FILMS IN PROGRESS AND FILM RIGHTS

(a)

ANNUAL
2015/168

20. ZRERRERNRE

Films in progress (a) HEHREF
2016 2015
- A& —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At the beginning of the year FH) 583 3,046
Addition NE 5,531 3,575
Disposal = = (5,246)
Impairment B - (792)
Recognized as film rights R BEZIRE (6,114) -
At the end of the year FR - 583

The films in progress was measured at cost less any
identifiable impairment loss.

During the year, there was approximately
HK$6,114,000 included in films in progress related
to a CJ7 cartoon movie titled “CJ7 Super Q Team”
was recognized as film rights.

Included in films in progress was approximately
HK$792,000 related to CJ7 cartoon drama and
games invested in prior years. The management
considers that it is difficult to set a solid time
schedule to distribute and the expected income would
be minimal. Therefore, the amount was impaired
during the year ended 31 March 2015.

The estimated recoverable amount of the remaining
films in progress as at 31 March 2015 was
determined based on the present value of expected
future revenue derived from discounting the projected
cash flows by a discount rate of 15%.

REPORT %

FERE IR AR A 5B E
Rt E -

RAFEE  BRI7RBEEFIK
T7HRBHFEE | E@ 2
B.114000F T2t AEHRE

% MRRELRE

BERARNBEFERENKILI7 RS
EBENEEX792,0008 TE
ARAEHEY - BEERAS AR
HAEHEERTRESL - BEY
WHEW AEX BEREBE-T
—hF=ZA=1T—RLFEKEH
HIBRE

R-ZZE—RAF=A=+—H #T
EHRHEY ZAEFATREESRE TR
15% 2 REMAARSRE
PRSI R R et 2 BRAE T &

ﬁio



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

20. FILMS IN PROGRESS AND FILM RIGHTS
(Continued)

(b) Film rights

20. ERERRERNRE (E)

2016 2015
—®-A%E —T-nf
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET
At the beginning of the year F1) 1,890 2,200
Transfer from films in progress EREEREY 6,114 -
Impairment DERIE) (8,004) (310)
At the end of the year Fix - 1,890

The film rights were related to the Group’s rights in
JTTW and CJ7 Super @ Team. The Group has
reassessed the economic value of its rights in JTTW
and CJ7 Super @ Team on a prudent basis and made
an impairment of approximately HK$8,004,000
(2015: HK$310,000).

The estimated recoverable amount as at 31 March
2015 was determined based on the present value of
expected future revenue derived from discounting the
projected cash flows by a discount rate of 15%.

BEXREDNBEBASER [
BRER] R [RI7REHFERK]
ZHERN - AEBDEESBMNEE
R e RER| K RII75E
R N2 RBEE - WiF
i (8 498,004,000 (=&
—H4 : 310,0004%7T) °

RZZE—RF=RA=+—H " &t
AU E & 8 T0 2 15% 2 Bh 3 KB
IR S REME HIBHIR W
BmZBEMEE -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ke EEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21, BERAEEFED

2016 2015
—®-A%E —T-nf
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR RN

Cash at banks and in hand RITNFBERE

131,913 128,974

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on daily
bank deposit rates. The fair values of the Group’s bank
balances and cash at 31 March 2016 and 2015
approximate their corresponding carrying amounts.

22. TRADE PAYABLES

The aging of the Group’s trade payables is analysed as

RITASRENBARTHERMERZF
BHERREFE - AEER T —RF
RZZ-—RAF=A=+—HZRITHEH
KB ez A HEREERE 2 RmERS

22, FEfTARSR

REBENBRRZREDMAT

follows:
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T-1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT T
Within 30 days 30HMUA 1,892 2,141
31-60 days 31=60H 4 -
1,896 2,141

Payment terms with suppliers are generally within 30 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

23.

24,

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

23.

BiiES  RMEARERE
FHRER

2016 2015
=t S A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHETT

Customer’s deposits and receipts B P iEE RIBYKRIE
in advance 16,127 18,925
Other payables and accruals (Note) O AN FRTE N FE AT R (B at) 53,936 952,775
70,063 71,700

Note:

The amount include payable to the Connection of approximately
HK$40,050,000 (2015: HK$42,132,000) which is stated in note 19 for
details.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 22 February 2010, the Company entered into the
Service Agreement with Mr. Chiau whereby the Company
appointed Mr. Chiau as an executive director of the
Company and Mr. Chiau accepted the appointment with
prescribed duties for an initial term of five year from 1
June 2010. In consideration of the performance by Mr.
Chiau of his duties for the Company, the Company shall, as
a remuneration package to issue the convertible bonds to
Mr. Chiau with an aggregate principal amount of HK$45
million. Details are described in note 33.

The convertible bonds contain two components, liability and
equity components. The fair value of the liability
component, which was determined by independent
professional valuers, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited on
the date of issue, is the present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rate of 16.73% and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms, but
without the conversion option. The residual amount is
assigned as the equity component and is included in equity.

24,

Wiz -

Z 2 e EENBERRK 2 AL 40,050,000
T(ZZ—HF:42,132,000%8 ) HHEFEE
RHFFE19 ©

CE: e

RZZE—ZTF_A=+=ZH KAQAHE
BEAETI R HE B ARRIEE
FASERBERABNITES - MAELER
EMEREESZT VISEHE -
—ZSFANA—BRIHAHAAF - ERA
EERBARRBITHBE 2RE - &2
AAMBEEZETASLER
45,000,000 7t 2 Al R EHIE A E
4EE o FHIBERHIFESS °

AMEREFEEmERS - aERE
@y c BEMONBITEHZAFE
(BB EXEHEMBBRITARARE
E)RBHMBEARRSRERERF
£16.73%8 I 2 HE - WA HR
REABHEFRRSRE - ML E L IBE
B O /ERE D - XA AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFE

24. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 24. MR ES (1B)

7 AR ES A B ED RIS LD
ZBBBIIOT ;

The movement of the liability component and equity
component of the convertible bonds for the year is set out

below:

Liability Equity
component  component
Vg R D
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FH&T FHT
At 1 April 2014 NZZE—FEMPA—A 16,379 114,249
Convertible bonds issued AT —MFERA—BETZ
on 1 June 2014 AR ES 44 532
Imputed interest charged EEHHEER S 2,908 -
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—RAF=RA=+—H 19,331 114,781
Conversion for the year FAH (6,971) (38,261)
Imputed interest charged EaHEEFE 2,529 -
At 31 March 2016 RZZE—ARF=A=+—H 14,889 76,520
2016 2015
—E-XF —FE-HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Mature within 1 year —FE A RIH] - _
Mature later than 1 year — 1% B R 14,889 19,331
14,889 19,331
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For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL

25. Bx&¥

As at 31 March 2016
R-ZE-"E=A=1+—-H

Number of

As at 31 March 2015
RZE-AF=A=+—H
Number of

shares Amount shares Amount
RHHE [ BHER HE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR FAR TR FAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each SREEC.04B T EBR
Authorised: BT
At the beginning and FNREFL
at the end of the year 5,000,000 200,000 5,000,000 200,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each SREAEC.04 BT EBR
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At the beginning of the year F1 3,212,945 128,518 3,082,195 123,288
Conversion of convertible bonds RgAgRES
(Note 1) (Fiez1) 110,294 4,411 - -
Share allotment under share option IRIE B R = 2B 2 A0
scheme (Note 2) (Bi7£2) 98,300 3,932 130,750 5,230
At the end of the year IR 3,421,539 136,861 3,212,945 128,518
Note 1: During the year, the Company issued 110,294,117 ordinary Wit1: RAFE ARAIBASBES
shares of HK$0.04 each as a result of the exercise of the 15,000,000 7% 7T 2 o] 42 i% 5 % FT B 5,
conversion rights attached to the convertible bonds of entire HaEE S AR (E0.136 B T EITE M 1T
principal amount of HK$15,000,000 at a conversion price of 110,294,117 &K HEEC.04 B T2
HK$0.1386. Eimak o
Note 2: During the year, 98,300,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each MtaE2 : RAFE - RARREEREST 83T

pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company at

consideration of HK$15,385,600.

In prior year, 130,750,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each
pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company at

consideration of HK$20,396,000.

98,300,000 & mE0.04 BT 2 &
A (% 15,385,600/& T °

WREFE - AN ERERERE 83
#7130,750,000 /% & i% £ 0.04 /& 7T
2 &R - KB/ 20,396,000 7T -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ke EEZERERAR
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Capital management

Capital comprises of share capital and reserves stated on
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
owners of the Company and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher
owners’ returns that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
maintains its net asset position.
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 25. BR®&E (&)
Capital management (Continued) EREHE(48)
The net debt-to-equity ratio at 31 March 2016 and 2015 RZE—RER_T—RAF=A=+—
was as follows: Bz FaEHRalEmT -
2016 2015
ZB-AE —T-AfF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ifz3 FTExT FAT
Current liabilities DEIREYE
Trade payables JET AR R 1,896 2,141
Deposits received, ather payables and Bligs - HtEMNKRIER
accruals e+ RUE 70,063 71,700
Tax payables FERTIE 2,034 2,101
73,993 75,942
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Convertible bonds Al AR E S 14,889 19,331
Total debt BB 88,882 95,273
Less: Cash and cash equivalents R RREEEY 21 (131,913) (128,974)
Net asset AEFE (43,031) (33,701)
Total equity (including EReE (RREIFRRER)
non-controlling interests) 138,648 143,195
Net debt-to-equity ratio FREHERLEX N/ATER N/AAEH
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject ARRKEEAHEBRARHITIINGEE
to externally imposed capital requirement. M2 B AR ER A

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
ke EEZERERAR
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26. RESERVES 26. fEfm
The Company b/ NN |
Equity
component
of convertible Share
Share  Contributed bonds options  Accumulated
premium surplus  ATRRES reserve losses Total
B EE BfES ERDS BRERE ZHER @t
HK$000  HK$OOO  HKEOOO  HK$OOO  HKFOOO  HKPOOO
T THBT THT THT THT THT
At 1 April 2014 R_E-NEMA—H 335,607 1,988 114,249 28,686  (501,961) (21,431)
Issue of convertible bonds BIBRES - - 532 - - 532
Issue of ordinary shares under BB E: 2l
share option scheme BITLRR 25,332 - - (10,166) - 15,166
Fquity settled share option DEREE BRERH
arrangement - - - 45,500 - 45,500
Lapse of share options TRRER - - - (448) 448 -
Loss for the year AEEFR - - - - (63,695) (63,695)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-H$=A=1—H 360,939 1,988 114,781 63,572  (565,208)  (23,928)
At 1 April 2015 RZE-REMNA-A 360,939 1,988 114,781 63,572  (565,208)  (23,928)
Issue of new shares upon Rl ESFELILE
conversion of convertible bonds  Z{T# R 40,821 - (38,261) - - 2,560
Issue of ordinary shares under 1 BB ETE
share option scheme BTLEA 19,050 - - (7,596) - 11,454
Equity settled share option BRI E 2 BIRER
arrangement - - - 21,600 - 21,600
Lapse of share options BiELT - - - (1,211) 1,211 =
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (35,737) (35,737)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—E=A=1-H 420,810 1,988 76,520 76,365  (599,734)  (24,051)
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26.

217.

RESERVES (Continued)

At 31 March 2016, no reserves is available for distribution
to owners of the Company (2015: Nil).

The share premium is arising from the issue of shares of
the Company.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by
the Company and the nominal value of the shares of the
Company at the time of the Group reorganisation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’'s share option scheme was adopted
pursuant to written resolutions passed on 19 October
2002 (the “Scheme A") for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors, eligible employees and
participants who have contributed to the Group, and has
expired on 12 November 2012. Pursuant to resolution
passed on 15 August 2012, a new share option scheme
(the “Scheme B”) was adopted under the same conditions
of the original scheme and will expire on 14 August 2022.
Under Schemes A and B (collectively, the “Schemes”), the
board of directors of the Company may grant options to
certain employees of the Group and any distributor,
contractor, business partner, promoter, service provider,
customer, supplier, consultants, agents and advisers or
any person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has
contributed or may contribute to the Group in recognition
of their contribution to the Group.

26.

217.

i o (75)

RZZE-—RE=ZA=+—8  #Ea#
DIKTARRBFEAEAZFHRB(ZF—1
F ) e
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BHBARGHEEFEEARAR
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ARz i E B

BRE_ZT_F+ATIABRBZER
IREER - ARBIRMEE R B (5
gAD TZ2EMNATBES  AER
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BZRER  ARARBERA A
Rl IR R st 8 ([5HEIBY) -
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A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFFE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 27. MEBRHERTEI (&)

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the maximum number of
Shares which may be allotted and issued upon the exercise
of all options which initially shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of
the Schemes and thereafter, if refreshed shall not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue (“Scheme Mandate Limit") as
at the date of approval of the refreshed limit by the
Shareholders. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the number
of Shares to be issued upon the exercise of all the Options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Schemes and
other share option schemes must not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the share option scheme will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in aggregate
within any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue, without prior
approval from the Company’'s shareholders. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors or any of his, her or its associates in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of offer
of the option exceeding the higher of 0.1% of the
Company’s shares in issue and with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from the date of acceptance
of the share option to such date as determined by the
board of directors of the Company and the exercise price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’'s shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 27. WRERHERTEI ()
Details of specific categories of options and the fair value BRI R RERER A FIE
of options are set out in note 33 to the consolidated BN R B TSR R MIFESS -

financial statements.

Details of the share options granted under the Schemes FA - ZEFE RAEMEMEEIE TR
and any other schemes and movements in such holdings B BB RE R BT

during the year were as follow:

Number of shares issuable under options held

BEfEBERET FRITZROHE
Balance at Balance at
Share 1 April 31 March
option 2015 2016
type R=F-HF R-B-~E
Category i M mA—-A Granted  Exercised Lapsed =A=t—H
£5 BE 2R i8] [EEiK:d BAK 2B
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000
TR TR Tk TR TR
Directors BE 2012A 30,000 - (6,000) - 24,000
2013A 2,000 - (2,000) - -
2013B 125,000 - - - 125,000
2014A 24,000 - - (6,000) 18,000
2015A - 29,000 - (3,000) 26,000
Employees E& 2012A 10,000 - - = 10,000
Advisors B f 2011B 9,000 - - - 9,000
2012A 90,300 - (90,300) - -
2014A 277,140 - - - 277,140
2015A - 132,000 - - 132,000
2015B - 50,000 - - 50,000
567,440 211,000  (98,300)  (9,000) 671,140
The closing price per share immediately before the date of B 17 7 28 201 5A & 20158 i i 7 1%
grant of share options of 2015A and 2015B is HK$0.26 AR T ES R AEFR0.26 8T
and HK$0.196 respectively. %0.1968 7T °

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
ke EEZERERAR
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
during the year was approximately HK$0.39.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Schemes and any other schemes during the year ended
31 March 2015:

27. MRBxiERTE (/&)

FA- RITERABZINEFERENS
0.3987 -

BHE_T-—HF=A=+—BILFE"
ZEF B REMEMET SR T W ARITE
Z BRI

Number of shares issuable under options held

REMRRRER TETBHHE

Balance at Balance at

Share 1 April 31 March

option 2014 2015

type WZ_ZT—MF RZE—RE

Category R MA—HA Granted  Exercised Lapsed —A=1—H
£5 B8 P i [RE-dis BT BRM 2 R
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

T T’ T T’ Tk

Directors % 2012A 30,250 - (250) - 30,000
2013A 2,000 - - - 2,000

20138 125,000 - - - 125,000

2014A - 27,000 - (3,000) 24,000

Employees EE 20124 10,000 - - - 10,000
Advisors E R 20118 9,000 - - - 9,000
2012A 220,800 - (130,500) - 90,300

2014A - 277,140 - - 277,140

397,050 304,140  (130,750) (3,000) 567,440

The total fair value of the share options of 2015A and
2015B granted during the year ended 31 March 2016
was approximately HK$21,600,000 (2015:
HK$45,500,000) and the Company recognised total
expenses of approximately HK$21,600,000 for the year.
(2015: HK$45,500,000).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had 671,140,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 19.6% of the Company’s shares in issue as
at that date.
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28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
which fall due as follows:

28. EEHWNKIE
FEEEREEA
SR E S S E A E €

REMHNAT 2 BRZFEHEENFASE
REEBERZF0T -

2016 2015
“EB-RE —_T—RF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHER FHETT
Within one year —F R 4,110 4,133
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_FRERF(PHEERERE) 16,532 16,165
More than five years BiBAF 17,960 22,947
38,602 43,245
Other than as disclosed above, the Group had no material Br LTI B AN - REERRE AR
lease commitments outstanding at the end of reporting I #8& 18 R 25 2 ERFA KV AHE -
period.
29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. BEXKIE
2016 2015
—F-X"F —FTIF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Contracted but not provided for BRT#EREE
— Additional cost to be incurred — GERBERELE ZBINKK
for animation under production - 8,510
- 8,510
Other than as disclosed above, the Group had no material bR EXFTIREEIN - REERREEAR

capital commitments outstanding at the end of the report
period.

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 March 2016 and 2015.

31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any pledged assets as at 31
March 2016 and 2015.

W mEBAREE 2 EARAE -

30. BRRAR

KEBR-_ZE—REN_ZT—HF=A
=+ —HUBERERLAEE -

3. EHEE

AREER-_F-—REFR-_FT-—RF=A
—t—HYEBEFAZEREE -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ke EEZERERAR
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32. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS 32. AEATERRERS

In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in these 2372
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into LR
the following material related party and connected T+ X
transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a)

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 10 is as follows:

R

ol
i)

REMBmREMIOMKEZ
o AEBGETTIEARREEA

TEEEASHH

TEERAB Y HM(BERE0
FRES N FARAREE L HB)
T

2016 2015
—®-AE —T-nf
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TETT
Directors’ fee, salaries, allowances EEME  Frae o BMK
and other benefits H g F 926 1,016
Share-based payments VARR D A EME 2 MR 3,026 4,615
3,952 5,631
(b) Connected party transactions (b) BEAEALRS
2016 2015
—E-XE —E-RF
Name of connected persons Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BREALER REME FET FAT
Entrance Gate Limited Royalty fee paid by the Group in relation 35 14
(Note 1) (Bfz£ 1) to the royalty income generated from
sub-licensing of intellectual property right
AEERERXABERNELENREA
SN2 ERNRE
The Star Overseas Limited Consultancy service fee paid by 840 840
(Note 2] the Group in relation to
the film production
EEBINBRAR(HZ2) AEEGFH BIE N 2 BRI R E
Billion Winning Limited Promotion fee paid by the Group 2 6
(Note 3) in relation to the royalty income
generated from sub-licensing
of intellectual property right
BHERLDR (H:t3) AEERERXANBERNELENREA
Xtz EEEM
Pacific Finder Limited Return on the feasibility study of a 606 -
(Note 6) film project received by the Group.
HFARAR (MEE) AEEB—ESFEB 2 AITIEME
PG @R
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32. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS 32. MEATRREXS (&)

(Note 6] study on a film project
MFEARAR (KiF6) AEEF —EEFIBE 21T

2R &

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Continued)
Outstanding balances with connected parties (c) EBEEALTZKRBELEE
2016 2015
—B-—ARE —T-0F
Name of connected persons Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BEATEE HE REME FHET TABTT
Entrance Gate Limited Payable by the Group for royalty fee 34 185
(Note 1) (KizF 1) in relation to the royalty income
generated from sub-licensing
of intellectual property right
REEPLER M BEEPTEEENERA
B 2 EFEE
The Star Overseas Limited Payable by the Group for consultancy 70 70
(Note 2) service fee in relation to the film
production
EEBINERAR (AE2) REBAF H BUERN 2 BRIRS &
Billion Winning Limited Payable by the Group for promotion fee - 6
(Note 3) in relation to the royalty income
generated from sub-licensing
of intellectual property right
BRARQR (HZE3) REEPLER A B EEPTEEENERA
FEfS 2t E
CineChina Limited Receivable of the Group for payment for 26,786 26,786
(Note 4) (K1:t4) procurement for investment
of Cinema Business
REBIKE b FI15 2 K
FE W2 FRIA
Mr. Yin Gang (Note 5) Receivable of the Group for payment for 16,979 16,979
procurement for investment of
Cinema Business
ENSi S 4 (Ffat5) REBIKE b FI5 2 K
FE W2 FRIA
Pacific Finder Limited Deposit paid by the Group for feasibility - 2,500

ke EEZERERAR
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32. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with connected parties
(Continued)
Note 1: Entrance Gate is an independent third party of the

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Company. However, the Licence Agreement between
Entrance Gate and High Amuse are inter-conditional with
the following connected transaction/continuing connected
transaction including (i) Service agreement for the
appointment of Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, as a director of the
Company, (ii) the Profit Transfer Deed between Ngai Wah
and High Amuse and (iii) acquisition agreement between
High Amuse and the shareholders of Raxco Assets Corp.
before the effective of the acquisition agreement. Royalty
fee payable to Entrance Gate in relation to the licence
agreement is disclosed as continuing connected
transaction.

Ms. Chow Man Ki, Kelly, a director of The Star Overseas
Limited, is an executive director of the Company since B
January 2014. Ms. Chow is also a sister of Mr. Chiau
Sing Chi who is a director of the Company. Accordingly,
Ms. Chow is considered a connected person during the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 under GEM
Listing Rules.

Ms. Chow Man Ki, Kelly, a director of Billion Winning
Limited, is an executive director of the Company since 6
January 2014. Ms. Chow is also a sister of Mr. Chiau
Sing Chi who is a director of the Company. Accordingly,
Ms. Chow is considered a connected person during the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 under GEM
Listing Rules.

CineChina Limited holds 30% equity interest in a subsidiary
of the Company and it is considered a connected person
under the GEM Listing Rules. The details of the connected
transaction is listed in note 19.

Mr. Yin Gang is a director of a subsidiary of the Company.
He is considered a connected person under the GEM
Listing Rule. The details of the connected transaction is
listed in note 19.

Ms. Chow Man Ki, Kelly, a director of Pacific Finder
Limited, is an executive director of the Company since 6
January 2014. Accordingly, Ms. Chow is considered a
connected person under GEM Listing Rules.
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32. REALTREAERS (&)

BEREAT ZRBEHEESR(E)

Hat 1 -

Krate :

Hiat3 -

Krat4 -

HitES -

Hat6 -

Entrance Gate JY A QA BB 8E =
J5oo BRI - PR 15 5 A ARAT -
Entrance Gate £ High Amuse ]
UZHHEBHEETIBRER
5/ BEBEXSEAEK B
BETALAREEAL5E
4 2 R W ¢ (i) Ngai Wah 62
High Amuse&] 37 2 & 7 % 7% 22
& ¢ R (i) High Amuse £2 Raxco
Assets Corp. i% 3 5] 37 2 Wt 13
& o Bt B ET M 15 2 mEntrance
Gate BN 2 BRI BRE R RHE
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R EAE 0% 2 s - R A
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BE—F—NF=H=1—HIFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company has the convertible bonds and share option

scheme for directors, employees and advisors of the

Group. Details of the convertible bonds and share options

are as follows:

Convertible bonds

Issuer:
Principal amount:

Issue date:
Maturity date:
Interest:
Conversion price:

The Company

HK$45 million in aggregate. The
Convertible Bonds in the amount of
HK$25 million issued on 1 June
2010 (‘commencement date”) and
the remaining four tranches (each
worth HK$5 million, and HK$20
million in aggregate) of the
Convertible Bonds issued on the
date being the first, second, third
and fourth anniversary of the date
of commencement date.

1 June 2010

Ten years from the date of issue
Zero coupon

HK$0.136 per share (Note 1)

The fair values of the HK$45 million convertible bonds
determined on 1 June 2010 using binomial option pricing
model was HK$124,360,000.

The followings assumptions were used to calculate the fair

value of HK$45 million convertible bonds:

Principle amount:
Expected life:
Interest:
Redemption price:

Conversion price:
Risk-free rate:

Effective interest rate:

Share price:

Expected dividend yield:

Expected volatility:

HK$45 million

10 years

Nil

100% of the principal
amount

HK$0.136 (Note 1)

2.47%

16.73%

HK$0.27

0%

84.09%

33. LIk HEREZ TR

ARFRRAKEES - BEREREHR
AR E S5 M BB A 8 - TR R 2R
REBEZFHIBIT

R ES

BN ARA

REH - #2{645,000,000/% 7T °
25,000,00078 Jt 2 7] #
BESER - E—TEAA
—B(H%BASH) %
T 8 T 7O gt T 9 R 1
(% 185,000,000% 7T -
A K& 4218 /20,000,000
) MBI B R B
— B E=RMENA
FYAHT -

BTEHE: —ZT-ZFRA—H
2R - BETHERFTF
ME 8

B (E BR0.136E T (M 1)

R-ZE-—ZTFRA-—AR-_BEABRE
E B 385 45,000,000% 7T 2 7]
Bk ERETE < A TERA 124,360,000
BT e

st H E1545,000,000/% T2 Al k(&
HZ N HERTERATRE

AEH 45,000,000% 7T
TREEH T

FE - i

BOE : EMAEHE

HERE - 0.136 T (Mt 1)
ERE A% - 2.47%

BRI 18.73%

BE 0.27&7T

EHAR S 0%

TR - 84.09%
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Share Option Scheme

Details of specific categories of options are as follow:

Option type: BIRERR: 2011B 2012A 2013A
Grant date: REAE: 2082010 2382012 4102013
it S ik St 3 Ik St
NAZTR NAZTZR Az
Number of options granted: ~ FX&REHE 21,000,000 294,840,000 2,000,000
Exercise period: ik 156-2011- 2382012 - 4102013 -
1982016 2282017 3102018
kS -3-Cf ZF=F
~ATERE NAZ+=ZR% TAMAZ
It S3 “2-tF It it
N\AThA NAZTzH TA=H
Exercise price: iR HK30.492 %7 HK$0.156 7% 7T HK30.1814 75T
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(K1) (Hizt1)
Fair value: ATE: HK$5,324,0008  HK$22,921,000 T HK$110,000%

The fair value of share options which were calculated by

binomial option pricing model with the following

assumptions:

Option type: RIRERA - 20118 2012A 20130
Share price as at grant date: ~ REHEHZRE HK$0.24 %0 HK$0.076 %7 HK$0.181 %7t
Nature of the options: BREILE: Call 2% Call 2% Call 2
Risk-free rate: % 1.28% 0.284% 0.54%
Expected lfe of the options: GEES 8 years 5 years £ 5 years’E
Expected volatilty: 91.85% 81.86% 65%
Expected dividend yield: | 0% 0% 0%
Exercise muliple: ity - 22 22 1.4

33. LRI BERZ IR (E)

BT &

FrEERIB AR T -

20138 20147 20154 20158

(Note 2)

(GE2)
4102013 1742014 1372015 1192015
5= “3-mF “3-1f “3-1f
TAmA mATtA tht=R hA+-R
125,000,000 304,140,000 161,000,000 50,000,000
4102013 - 1742014 - 1372015~ 1192015-
3102016 164-2019 1272020 1092020
FzF ZF-[If %1% “F-1%
TAREE RATLAE tAt=RE hAT-RZ
ZERE ZFNE Z32%F 3
+A=A BAt7A tht+-8 hAtE
HK$0.1814 57 HK$0.364 570 HK$0.2357 7 HK$0.20053 T
HK$6,000000  HK$45,500,000% HK$16,800,000  HK$4,800,000% 7

ER-EABEEEERAGFEZBR
AT ETERLTRE :

20138 2014A 2015A 20158
HK$0.181 57 HK$0.355 %7t HK$0.23 % HK$0.273
Call328 Call 28 Call2 Calli2%
1.15% 1.38% 1.15% 1.02%

3 years® 5 years§ 5 years 5 years®
70% 62% 6% 66%

0% 0% 0% 0%

14 2.4 2.45 2.48

During the year, 211,000,000 share options were
granted and the Company recognised the total expenses of
HK$21,600,000 as share-based payments for year ended
31 March 2016.

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility
of the Company’s share prices. Expected dividends were
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Note 1: Adjusted for share consolidation effective from 18 September
2012.

Note 2: The 2013B share options were approved at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 17 December 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
B2 —F—NFZH=+—HIFFE

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 34. BT ZES

Particulars regarding the subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 RZZE—RF=-A=+—8"  WBA7A
are as follows: R
Attributable
equity interests
Place of Issued and  held by the Company
incorporation/ fully paid RRH
operation Type of share capital FEfh 2 B AR Principal
Name of subsidiaries HEmRL/ legal entity 2%fTk  Directly Indirectly activities
WEARER X EEERER BRERE EE B  FEXHR
% %
Art Aim Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Movie
HEBRAA B company 1% production
BAREAAR BYRIE
BG Cinemas Limited The British Virgin Limited liability Us$10 - 70 Licensing
HEEFRERAT Islands (“BVI") company 10%7 business
RERURS BREELA FRHERT
(IRBRXES])
BG Movies Limited BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Dormant
tREFERA EBEEAES company 1%t umay
BREAEAR
Billion Success Corporation Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100  Licensing
Limited B30 company 1%L business
ERARAA BREERLA BIHERD
Bingo Animation Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Cartoon
HRBEERAF B company 15871 production
BREEAR RREME
Bingo Cinema Investment Hong Kong Limited liability ~ HK$10,000 - 70  Cinema
Company Limited 36 company 10,000% 7T investment
HREYRREERD BREAAR FhiRE
Bingo Cinema Management Hong Kong Limited liability ~ HK$10,000 - 70  Cinema
Company Limited Bk company 10,000/ T management
HREFRERERAA BREELA ThhER

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ke EEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFFE

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. MEBATRZHE (&)

Attributable
equity interests

Place of Issued and  held by the Company
incorporation/ fully paid YN
operation Type of share capital EzRAER Principal
Name of subsidiaries HEmRL legal entity 2%17k  Directly Indirectly activities
WEARER EXBE EERERER BRRA EE M TEER
% %
Bingo Management Services ~ Hong Kang Limited liability HK$1 100 - Management
Limited e company 18T services
HRERREERAA BREELA EIRRT
Bingo Movie Development Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Movie
Limited 0 company 187 production
HRETVERARAA AREAAR BYRIE
Bingo Trademark Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Dormant
HEEEERAF &% company 1% EEEE
BREELA
Boscon Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$8 - 100  Cartoon
ARBRAT ENs company 88T production
BREERT AR
Brillant Tech Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HKS$1 - 70 Cinema
KRBRAF 36 company 1871 management
BREAAR ThRER
China Cultural Industry Cayman Islands Limited liability Us$100 - 100  Dormant
Investment Fund HEHSE company 100%TT Omex
PENEEXREES BRAEARA
Easybuild Assets Management BV Limited liability US$1 100 - Investment
Limited RERAHE company (Ev holding
HREEERARANA BREAAR REER
EmCall Pte Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 - 100  Dormant
HHRAERRF &% company 1087 EEEE
BREAAR
Emcom (HK) Pte Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 100 - Investment
FEBA(BE)BRAR 307 company 10%7T holding
BREEAR REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFFE

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. MEBATRZHEE (E)

Attributable
equity interests

Place of Issued and  held by the Company
incorporation/ fully paid YN
operation Type of share capital EzRAER Principal
Name of subsidiaries HEmRL legal entity 2%17k  Directly Indirectly activities
WEAREE EXuH EEERER BRRA EE Mg TEER
% %
Gi Space Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100  Dormant
A company 18T Emex
BREELA
Harvest Yield Investments BVI Limited liability uss$2 100 - Dormant
Limited EBEEAES company 2ETT EEgx
AREAAR
High Amuse Limited BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Licensing
EBERAT ERERNHES company (E business
BREELA WAL
Huge Art Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Cartoon
FEERRA 07 company 13871 production
BREAEAR RREME
Hugo Wisdom Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HKS$1 100 - Dormant
ZEBRAA &% company 1% EmER
BREAAR
Lofty Gain Investments Limited BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Movie
BREAREBRLA EREXHS company (= production
BREERDA BRHE
Lofty Shine Limited BVI Limited liability Us$1 100 - Investment
BEARAF EBEIHES company 1% holding
BREAAR REAZK
New Harvest Trading Limited ~ BVI Limited liability HK$1 100 - Dormant
HEESERAF RBEAHE company 1% EEEE
BREAAR

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ke EEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFFE

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. MEBATRZHE (&)

Attributable
equity interests

Place of Issued and  held by the Company
incorporation/ fully paid YN
operation Type of share capital EzRAER Principal
Name of subsidiaries HEmRL legal entity 2%17k  Directly Indirectly activities
WEAREE EXuH EEERER BRRA EE Mg TEER
% %
Power Alliance Investment Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100  Dormant
Limited e company 18T EmeEx
BERERRAF BREELA
Raxco Assets Corp BVI Limited liability ~ US$62,720 - 100  Licensing
EBEEAES company 62,720% T business
AREAAR RAHERT
Sinotrans Resources Limited BV Limited liability US$1 100 - Dormant
ERERBRAA REEAEE company 1% EEEE
BREELA
Shanghai Bingo Interactive PRC Limited liability ~ US$2.642m - 100 New Media
Information Technology H company 2,642,000 Exploitations
Co. Ltd* BREAEAR e business
FREEEBHESRRBRAR* MRRRERR
TERRYRERER PRC Limited liability ~ US$100,000 - 70  Cinema
BRAF* H company 100,000% T management
BREEDA FhER
B ( ) IRELH PRC Limited liability ~ US$100,000 - 70  Cinema
BEA7* F company 100,000% T investment
BREAEAR FhiRE
TEBHEREATRAA PRC Limited liability ~RMB100,000 - 70  Cinema
h company AR investment
BREAAR 100,000t FhiRE
tERER (8)BRAR PRC Limited liability RMBBm - 52.5  Cinema business
i company AEE ThE
BREMALE 6,000,000t
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
B2 —F—NFZH=+—HIFFE

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. HEBATZHE(E)
Attributable
equity interests

Place of Issued and  held by the Company

incorporation/ fully paid YN

operation Type of share capital EzRAER Principal
Name of subsidiaries HEmRL legal entity 2%17k  Directly Indirectly activities
WEAREE EXuH EEERER BRRA EE Mg TEER

% %

BLhEETRERAR PRC Limited liability - RMB500,000 - 52.5  Cinema business

F company ARE FhES

BREELA 500,000

AN REZRERAR PRC Limited liability - RMB500,000 - 52.5  Cinema business
F company ARE FhES
BREFRH 500,000 7t
AEERHEACRINBRA PRC Limited liability - RMB100,000 - 100  Dormant
i company AR EEEX
BREFRH 100,000 7
* Wholly owned foreign enterprises (WOFE) registered under PRC law. * BIEREERE L ZINABERE -
The table below shows details of a non-wholly owned TRINTEREERFERERZAEH
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling FE2EMBRRZHS
interests:
Place of
incarporation Proportion of ownership
and principal interests and voting
place of rights held by
business non-controlling interests Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary HMAIHER  FRRESEEZESERER  noncontrolinginterests  non<controling interests
KEADEHE TEERMY RERIA FERERELET ZitFaRER

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2019
Z8-5E  “F-1F  ZB-3F “T-1fF DR CRIF
HK$000  HKBOOO = HK$000  HKSO00

TR TAL TER TR

LEEFR(LE)ERAR LEEFR(LE)ERAA PRC 47.5% 47.5% 2,047 5,121 14,254 12,207

Indiidually mmaterial subsidiaries EEARER, f
with non-cantroling interests BREEAMEDT (2,481) 2.787)
11,773 9,440

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED w
ke EEZERERAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFFE

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarized financial information below

34. BT ZEEE ()

TREJNEGAEFEAIERER 2 A
SEMBRRZHBERME - T
BERBEZEREAKE QR EEHA

represents amounts before intra-group eliminations. LB o
2016 2015
—B-XE —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
tkEEER (L8 BRAA THExT FET
Non-current assets EMBNEE 27,334 37,220
Current assets TEEE 63,080 52,840
Current liabilities mENAE (55,016) (58.972)
Turnover | 73,441 76,820
Cost of income LN ¥N (31,434) (32,754)
Other income EH iz A 680 3,897
Expenses M (36,706) (37,215)
Profit for the year KEZHH 5,981 10,748
Profit attributable to owners KRTEVHEE AESE ST
of the Company 3,140 5,643
Profit attributable to non-controlling FEVRAR b o FE A i A
interests 2,841 5,105
Profit for the year RFE i F 5,981 10,748
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
B2 —F—NFZH=+—HIFFE

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

34. B LQTIZEEN (E)

2016 2015
—EBE-—XE —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
tbmEE (L) BRAFA TFE T FAT
Other comprehensive (loss)/income RNARER AJEG
attributable to owners of the HEiham(ER), s
Company (877) 18
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEFERR R R R
attributable to non-controlling HEiham(ER), e
interests (794) 16
Other comprehensive (loss)/income AEFEMEE(EER), S
for the year (1,671) 34
Total comprehensive income EN/NCIEZ DN
attributable to owners of the FHEWEEE
Company 2,263 5,661
Total comprehensive income IR S R
attributable to non-controlling EHE B
interests 2,047 5,121
Total comprehensive income AFEEEEW =BT
for the year 4,310 10,782
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT eI s 2 IR
interests - -
Net cash generated from KRBTSR e R
operating activities 9,060 14,882
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEESE/ (FTR)2Re 38
investing activities 172 (1,159)
Net cash generated from financing ME RSB 2R EE
activities - 3,536
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMEE R& &) & (188) 189
Net cash inflow BeRmANFHE 9,044 17,448

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ke EEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRGE

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. LT MBRREE

COMPANY
2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—HF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FExT FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRR 81 93
Interests in subsidiaries ALIENGIP S 266,313 263,258
266,394 263,351
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and HipfEUFOE - 2 e RIER B
prepayments 807 807
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 9,784 8,607
10,591 9,414
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals H A R FRIB R BT OB 3,602 3,422
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATBY B A A FkIE 145,684 145,422
149,286 148,844
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFE (138,695) (139,430)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABRARBERS
LIABILITIES 127,699 123,921
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Convertible bonds AR E S 14,889 19,331
NET ASSETS BEEFE 112,810 104,590
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR
Share capital B& 2 136,861 128,518
Reserves s (24,051) (23,928)
TOTAL EQUITY RREEHE 112,810 104,590
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
A2 —FT—ANF=H="1—HIFFE

36. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 16 May 2016, the Board announced that the Group
has obtained a preliminary offer for the settlement from
Huayi Brothers. The negotiation between the Group and
Huayi Brothers is still in progress and no settlement terms
is reached as at 16 May 2016 and the date of this report.
As further time is required for the mediation and
settlement, the Group has already applied to withdraw the
appeal, subsequent to the year-end date of 31 March
20186.

36. HENMERER

==
=]

R-ZE-—RFRAAt+TAH EFeg

o REERBEERELSZVISMERE
#eo AEBEER A BNEERET
RZF—ARFERATNARAKKER
fe) AR S B (LA M AR 55K - B B ERSD
REETHABENANE  AEBER_-F
—RNFE=ZRA=1T—BFAEBEPBERE
&

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ke EEZERERAR
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEMEBHE

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

AEERBEREMBRFECXENEERRA

five financial years are as follows: BT
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E—XxF —T-RF T-WmE T-=F ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FET FHET FHET
RESULTS E4
Turnover EER 74,774 76,961 80,447 198,797 279,998
(Loss)/praofit before taxation BRI (E5B), A (44,745) (60,137) (50,470) 14,605 (124,581)
Taxation iE (2,143) (2,839) (3,376) (885) (803)
(Loss)/profit before OBk IR 25 Al
non-controlling interest (B18),/ &5 (46,888) (62,976) (53,8486) 13,720 (125,384)
Non-controlling interests JEFEARRER (2,458) (2,971) (5,618) (755) 1,221
(Loss)/profit attributable to RKRFHEB AENL
owners of the Company (E18),/&F (49,346) (65,947) (59,464) 12,965 (124,163)
(Loss)/earnings per share i (H1R),/BF
— Basic (cents) — EARGEW) (1.46) (2.08) (1.94) 0.43 (7.70)
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E—XxF —T-RF T-WFE T-=F ZT-—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FET FHET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BERAE 227,530 238,468 238,506 296,856 156,019
Total liabilities BEER (88,882) (95,273) (100,181) (117,958) (24,260)
Non-controlling interests JEFEARRER 11,773 9,440 5,102 (527) (1,228)
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